








 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 

 

 
       

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 
 

MARCH 5, 2012 

1



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

 

BOARD MEETING                      STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:00 P.M.                                       5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 

                                                                MARCH 5, 2012 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Please 

make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

E. Routine Matters 

1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – February 20, 2012 

2. *Approval of Bills 

3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

4. Summary of Board Committee of the Whole Meeting – February 27, 2012 

 

F. Information Items 

1. Employees of the Month 

2. Superintendent’s Comments 

3. Board Comments/Announcements 

4. Report from Student Representatives 

 

G. Unfinished Business: 

 

H. New Business 

1. First Reading of Policy 6203 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Taught Curriculum: Lesson (Instructional) 

Plans 

2. *Reaffirm Policy 6220 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment –  Taught Curriculum: Organization of Instruction 

3. *Reaffirm Policy 6628 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – School Counseling  

4. *Reaffirm Policy 6635 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Students with Disabilities 

5. *Reaffirm Policy 9111 – Bylaws of the Board – Election of Officers 

6. *Reaffirm Rule 9111.1 – Bylaws of the Board – Election of Officers 

7. *Reaffirm Policy 9112 – Bylaws of the Board – Committees and Appointments 

8. *Reaffirm Rule 9112.1 – Bylaws of the Board – Committees and Appointments 

9. *Reaffirm Policy 9210 -  Bylaws of the Board – Attorney 

10. *Reaffirm Policy 9220 – Bylaws of the Board – Auditor 

11. *Reaffirm Policy 9330 – Bylaws of the Board – Approval of Administrative Regulations 

12. Approval to Recognize the Millard Education Association for the 2013-2014 Teachers Contract 

13. Approval to Recognize the Millard Education Association for the 2013-2014 Nurses Contract 

14. Award of Contract for Ackerman Roofing Phase III 

15. Award of Contract for MNHS Roofing Phase IV 

16. Award of Contract for MSHS Roofing Phase III 

17. Award of Contract for AMS Carpet Replacement 

18. Award of Contract for Cottonwood Heat Pump Replacements 

19. Award of Contract for Hitchcock RTU Replacements 

20. Administrator for Hire 

21. Approval of Personnel Actions: Leave(s) of Absence, Resignation(s), and New Hire(s) 

22. Negotiation (Executive Session) 

 

2



 

 

Agenda 

March 5, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 

  

I. Reports 

1. Enrollment Report 

2. Legislative Update 

3. Mind Mixer Demonstration 

     

J.   Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar.   

1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 12, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street 

2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 19, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 2, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147
th

 Street 

4. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, April 9, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 16, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street  

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 7, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147
th

 Street 

7. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 14, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 21, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147
th

 Street  

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request form is 

given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.  Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may be 

deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

3



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  

 

BOARD MEETING          STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:00 P.M.                             5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 

                                                                       MARCH 5, 2012 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Please 

 make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting. 

 

*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – February 20, 2012 

(See enclosure.) 

 

*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills (See enclosures.) 

 

*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File (See enclosure.) 

 

 E.4.  Summary of Board Committee of the Whole – February 27, 2012 

 

 F.1.  Employees of the Month 

 

 F.2.  Superintendent’s Comments  

 

 F.3. Board Comments/Announcements 

 

F.4. Report from Student Representatives 

 

H.1.  First Reading of Policy 6203 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Taught Curriculum: Lesson (Instructional) Plans 

(See enclosure.) 

 

*H.2.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 6220 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Taught Curriculum:  Organization of Instruction (See enclosure.) 

 

*H.3.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 6628 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – School Counseling (See enclosure.) 

 

*H.4.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 6635 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Students with Disabilities (See enclosure.)  

 

*H.5.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 9111 - Bylaw of the Board – Election of 

Officers (See enclosure.) 

 

*H.6.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 9111.1 – Bylaws of the Board – Election 

of Officers (See enclosure.) 

 

*H.7.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 9112 – Bylaws of the Board – 

Committees and Appointments (See enclosure.) 

 

 

4



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 

March 5, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 

*H.8.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Rule 9112.1 – Bylaws of the Board – 

Committees and Appointments (See enclosure.)  

 

*H.9.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 9210 – Bylaws of the Board – Attorney 

(See enclosure.) 

 

*H.10.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 9220 – Bylaws of the Board – Auditor 

(See enclosure.) 

 

*H.11.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to reaffirm Policy 9330 – Bylaws of the Board – Approval 

of Administrative Regulations (See enclosure.) 

 

H.12.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the District recognize the MEA as the collective 

bargaining agent for teachers in the District for the Fiscal Year Ended 2014 employment contract (See enclosure.) 

 

H.13.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the District recognize the MEA as the collective 

bargaining agent for nurses in the District for the Fiscal Year Ended 2014 employment contract (See enclosure.) 

 

H.14. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Ackerman Elementary 

School Roofing Project (Phase III) be awarded to Scott Enterprises of Omaha in the amount of $333,795 and that the 

Associate Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to 

such project  (See enclosure.) 

 

H.15.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________,  to approve the contract for the Millard North High School 

Roofing Project (Phase IV) be awarded to Boone Brothers Roofing in the amount of $360,000 and that the Associate 

Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such 

project. (See enclosure.) 

 

H.16.  Motion by ______________, seconded by _________________,  to approve the contract for the Millard South High School 

Roofing Project (Phase III) be awarded to Boone Brothers Roofing in the amount of $490,000 and that the Associate 

Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such 

project. (See enclosure.) 

 

H.17.    Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________,  to approve the contract for the Andersen Middle School                

Carpet Replacement Project be awarded to Commercial Flooring in the amount of $135,000 (with such amount including 

the base bid only) and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute 

any and all documents related to such project  (See enclosure.) 

 

H.18  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the contract for the Cottonwood Elementary 

School Heat Pump Replacement Project be awarded to Sol Lewis Engineering Company in the amount of $291,150 (with 

such amount including the base bid and both alternates) and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration 

be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project (See enclosure.) 

 

H.19.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ___________________ to approve the contract for the Hitchcock Elementary 

School Roof Top Unit Replacement Project be awarded to Controlled Comfort in the amount of $95,124 (with such amount 

including the base bid only) and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to 

execute any and all documents related to such project (See enclosure.) 

 

H.20. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve administrator for hire:   

 

H.21.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions: Leave(s) of Absence, 

Resignation(s), and New Hire(s) (See enclosures.) 

 

H.22.  Negotiations (Executive Session) 

 

5



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 

March 5, 2012 

Page 3 

 

 

I.  Reports: 

1. Enrollment Report 

2. Legislative Report 

3. Mind Mixer Demonstration 

 

J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 

1. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, March 12, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street 

2. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, March 19, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 2, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147
th

 Street 

4. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, April 9, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, April 16, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street  

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 7, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147
th

 Street 

7. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 14, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 21, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147
th

 Street  

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request form is 

given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

L.    Adjournment   All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  

Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

6



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of Nebraska.  The 

meeting was convened in open and public session at 6:00 p.m., Monday, February 20, 2012, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street. 

 

 Present:  Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, Patrick Ricketts, Mike Kennedy, and Todd Clarke 

 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, February 17, 2012; a copy of the 

publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of Education and a copy 

of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.  Availability of the agenda was 

communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were 

taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public. 

 

At 6:00 p.m. Dave Anderson called the meeting to order and announced the Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for 

public inspection.  Mr. Anderson asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Roll call was taken and all members were present. 

 

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from February 6, 2012 to approve 

the bills, and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Superintendent’s Comments: 

 

1. No students or staff today because of President’s Day. 

 

2. The next Committee meeting will be next Monday, February 27, 2012 with a demonstration for student 

identification on buses.  Also, a representative from the Wiese Corporation will be here to go over the post bond 

survey they conducted. 

 

3. A week ago an estimate of State Aid was made and the District would receive a lesser amount than anticipated, but 

by lengthening the school day the District will see an increase in State Aid. 

 

Board Comments: 

 

Mike Pate said the Learning Community met last Thursday.  Mr. Pate reported there was approval of funding for the various 

Elementary Learning Center for each Sub-Council.  Millard is in Subcouncil #4 and will receive $131,274.30.   

 

Mr. Pate said there were a lot of congratulations going around among some Learning Community members due to the outcome of the 

State Supreme Court ruling on the common levy lawsuit.  Mr. Pate still questions why the Learning Community was involved in the 

lawsuit in the first place. 

 

Patrick Ricketts announced he will be at Millard West participating in their speech interviews.  He also will be attending some of the 

elementary buildings to read. 

 

Mr. Ricketts advised the board members he will not be at the March 12, 2012 Committee meeting. 

 

Dave Anderson highlighted his trip to Washington, D. C. in his participation in the Federal Relation Network Conference.  He said he 

was able to meet with most of the representatives from Nebraska and talked about the same things that have been talked about for the 

last several years, which included ESEA (No Child Left Behind), Special Education funding, Title One funding, and Federal Common 

Core Curriculum Standards.  All of the representatives agree that many of these items need to be done, but none think it will happen 

this year, because it is an election year.  Mr. Anderson said it is frustrating when you talk about the same things year after year, and 

nothing gets done. 

 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to reaffirm Policy 6005 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – System Wide 

Planning for Curriculum, Instruction, Assessment and Staff Development, Policy 6100 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – 

Written Curriculum:  Millard Education Program, Policy 6101 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Written Curriculum:  

Accountability, and Policy 6121 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Written Curriculum:  Planning Timelines, upon roll call 

vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

7



 

Board of Education Minutes 

February 20, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 

Pat Ricketts provided the first reading of Policy 7305 – Technology – Web and Social Media Publishing.  This policy will be on 

another board agenda for approval. 

 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Todd Clarke, to approve the contract for the summer paving and lighting project at Cather 

Elementary School be awarded to Swain Construction in the amount of $129,281.55 and that the Associate Superintendent for General 

Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members 

voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the contract for the summer irrigation replacement at Millard South High 

School be awarded to Uleman Irrigation in the amount of $119,950 and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration 

be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  

Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Pat Ricketts, to approve the contract for the summer doors, frames, and hardware replacement 

project at various sites be awarded to McGinnis Construction in the amount of $55, 578 (with such amount including only the base 

bid) and that the associate superintendent for general administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents 

related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the contract for the summer kitchen renovation project at Montclair 

Elementary School be awarded to JFK Construction, Inc. in the amount of $55,013 and that the Associate Superintendent for General 

Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members 

voted aye.   Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Todd Clarke, seconded by Pat Ricketts, to approve the summer fire detection replacement project at Harvey Oaks 

Elementary School be awarded to Munch Electric in the amount of $54,254 and that the Associate Superintendent for General 

Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members 

voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Todd Clarke, to approve the contract for the summer Intercom System project at Aldrich 

Elementary School be awarded to Electronic Sound in the amount of $24,800 and that the Associate Superintendent for General 

Administration be authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members 

voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the contract for the summer Intercom System project at Kiewit Middle 

School be awarded to Electronic Sound in the amount of $55,795 and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be 

authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Pat Ricketts, to approve Personnel Actions: Resignations:  Lindsey Vogel, Larry Rathbun, 

Jessica Wells, and Andrea M. Gennarelli; Voluntary Separation Program: Margie Schimenti, Lynne M. Newville, Terence J. Thielen, 

Carolyn A. Gassert, Suzanne E. Hillman, Sharon C. VanWinkle, Susan A. Dunning, Nila J. Nielsen, Kathryn I. Ryan, and Andrea B. 

Olson; and New Hire: Samantha K. Ballard, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Dave Anderson announced that Pupil Personnel Services and Negotiation will be delayed to the end of the meeting for Executive 

Session. 

  

Reports were a Legislative Report and a Technology Report 

 

Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar:    A Committee of the Whole Meeting will be held on Monday, February 27, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. 

at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street.  A Board of Education meeting will be held on Monday, March 5, 

2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street.  A Committee of the Whole Meeting will be held 

on Monday, March 12, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street.  A Board of Education 

Meeting will be held on Monday, March 19, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street. A 
Board of Education Meeting will be held on Monday, April 2, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 

147
th

 Street.  A Committee of the Whole Meeting will be held on Monday, April 9, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration  

 

8





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Millard Public Schools 
March 5, 2012 

 

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
TERENCE G CABRAL138539391300 62.50 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436391301 12,604.64 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731391302 47.50 
ROBERTA E DEREMER133009391303 736.00 
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF IB SCHOOLS102708391304 2,460.00 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470391306 38.00 
LINCOLN EAST HIGH SCHOOL100058391307 300.00 
LINCOLN EAST HIGH SCHOOL100058391308 256.00 
NEBRASKA EDUCATIONAL TECH ASSN100216391309 115.00 
OMAHA PUBLIC SCHOOLS070810391310 60.00 
SOUTHSIDE PLUMBING LLC133954391311 3,282.84 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840391312 135,000.00 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA KEARNEY068839391313 65.00 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA-LINCOLN068878391314 140.00 
ADA BADMINTON & TENNIS099601391334 680.00 
TIMOHTY J BARR139069391335 90.00 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436391336 31,916.67 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP138496391338 17,706.05 
JOHN HOLEN138925391339 90.00 
HY-VEE INC133397391340 2,860.77 
HY-VEE INC049851391341 814.62 
HY-VEE INC049850391342 894.85 
LINCOLN EAST HIGH SCHOOL100058391343 804.00 
JOHN Q HAMMONS RVOCTR12281989 LLC139067391344 1,161.00 
LINCOLN SOUTHEAST HIGH SCHOOL100006391345 205.00 
MARGO R LIVINGSTON138861391346 400.00 
MARIAN HIGH SCHOOL100204391347 149.00 
NATIONAL FORENSIC LEAGUE107724391348 580.00 
NATIONAL FORENSIC LEAGUE107724391349 480.00 
OMAHA PUBLIC SCHOOLS070810391351 60.00 
PETTY CASH/TECHNOLOGY133227391352 173.15 
SAMS CLUB DIRECT081630391353 144.20 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765391354 1,050.00 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840391356 40.00 
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA139074391357 2,500.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354391358 100.00 
RUDOLPH A VLCEK III135863391359 125.00 
A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040391360 597.23 
ACT INC010003391361 250.00 
KAREN S ADAMS133402391362 22.31 
LAURA L AGUILAR136621391364 199.96 
AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL INC108351391365 61.01 
AKSARBEN PIPE AND SEWER CLEAN LLC133620391366 1,201.25 
ALEGENT HEALTH136365391367 4,916.66 
JEFFREY S ALFREY010946391368 113.00 
ALLIED OIL AND TIRE CO011185391369 180.10 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
DAVE ALLOCCO108271391370 100.00 
ALPINE KILNS & EQUIPMENT LLC136400391371 174.44 
ALTEC INDUSTRIES INC133777391372 481.09 
AMAZON.COM INC107651391373 426.56 
AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION012050391374 180.00 
AMERICAN RED CROSS HEARTLAND012450391375 1,859.80 
LYON HOTEL LLC139068391376 522.86 
AMSAN LLC069689391377 27,626.05 
JILL M ANDERSON131265391378 46.62 
DAVE ANDERSON136056391379 50.99 
ELIZABETH A ANDREASEN134167391380 15.94 
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989391381 2,983.00 
AQUA-CHEM INC106436391382 1,980.70 
DIANE ARAUJO133770391383 34.02 
ASCD013496391384 400.65 
SARAH A ASCHENBRENNER134235391385 99.84 
AUTISM CENTER OF NEBRASKA INC138291391387 17,512.09 
AVIS RENT A CAR SYSTEM INC135330391388 145.60 
BAHR VERMEER HAECKER ARCHITECTS135245391389 18,600.00 
KRISTIN BAINBRIDGE138441391390 50.00 
BAKER DISTRIBUTING CO LLC135991391391 18.00 
REX J BARKER017908391392 43.46 
BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646391393 1,254.65 
CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR017877391394 110.33 
DONNA BARTEK135319391395 45.00 
LORI A BARTELS107979391396 80.48 
TERA BASS133359391397 400.00 
BEAR CONSTRUCTION INC136272391398 3,705.00 
JOSIAH DANIEL BEDUNNAH138956391399 100.00 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540391400 320.79 
JULIE K BERGSTROM134884391401 42.50 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480391402 9,244.25 
BIO CORPORATION132475391403 624.04 
RYANDEAN M BIRGE138712391404 42.62 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111391405 31,827.47 
BLAND & ASSOCIATES PC136105391406 11,976.72 
DICK BLICK CO099220391407 242.57 
MATTHEW J BLOMENKAMP138841391408 36.19 
TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH134478391410 47.73 
KIMBERLY M BOLAN130899391411 175.94 
SHEILA F BOLMEIER135539391412 145.41 
WILLIAMS PROPERTIES LLC136633391413 472.00 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559391414 3,328.04 
MICHELLE M BOYD132888391415 91.11 
BOYS TOWN NATIONAL019835391416 1,812.33 
GARY R BRAUN138819391417 7.50 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
PAMELA A BRENNAN130576391419 161.51 
BRETFORD MANUFACTURING INC137843391420 263.28 
BRIGHT RING PUBLISHING INC138981391421 85.80 
MEGAN BROWN138957391422 50.00 
NANCY A BROWN133824391423 47.40 
DAVID J BUCKLEY130820391424 102.78 
BUILDING COMPONENTS INC132612391425 250.00 
BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH020550391426 687.00 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431391427 8,027.00 
EILEEN CABRERA137274391428 35.52 
CALLOWAY HOUSE INC023831391430 81.91 
KIM M CARBEE138145391431 9.57 
ELIZABETH J CAREY106806391432 49.45 
DEBRA R CARLSON108215391434 170.72 
CURTIS R CASE131158391436 57.17 
CAROLINE ANNE CASIAS138916391437 60.00 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589391438 2,973.10 
CAITLIN CEDFELDT136560391439 50.00 
SUSAN M CHADWICK135648391440 21.70 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271391441 54.95 
KEVIN J CHICK106836391442 1,670.89 
CHILDREN'S HOME HEALTHCARE106851391443 15,275.75 
GRANT T CHRISTIANSEN138698391445 51.67 
CIMQUEST INC139038391446 299.50 
CLARITUS132581391447 810.00 
JILL R CLASSEN138843391448 20.60 
DALE CLAUSEN025235391450 147.63 
CLAY TIMES INC101174391451 33.00 
RUTH  A CLEMENS136334391452 73.95 
PATRICIA A CLIFTON131135391453 71.93 
LISA L CLINARD136780391454 32.76 
NANCY S COLE137013391455 118.10 
SHARON R COMISAR-LANGDON022701391457 576.14 
COMMERCIAL AIR MANAGEMENT INC109867391458 1,547.00 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC135082391459 102.00 
CONTROL MASTERS INC026057391461 8,526.64 
DAVID J CORK135992391462 150.96 
CPI QUALIFIED PLAN CONSULTANTS INC137395391464 845.00 
DELTA EDUCATION LLC137883391465 120.96 
CRISIS PREVENTION INSTITUTE INC109063391466 250.00 
CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOOKS099957391467 390.03 
CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC027300391468 3,110.48 
DEBORAH S CURNYN137696391469 4.44 
CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC027345391470 1,311.56 
CURTIS 1000 INC100577391471 11,131.70 
CHERYL L CUSTARD130900391472 107.67 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731391473 259.15 
JEAN T DAIGLE132671391474 94.91 
ANGELA M DAIGLE134751391475 45.51 
DAILY RECORD131003391476 121.10 
STACY L DARNOLD138306391477 60.94 
PAMELA M DAVIS032246391478 55.22 
DOING BETTERS INSPECTIONS INC139078391479 206.50 
CHERYL R DECKER032497391480 102.12 
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469391481 12,102.84 
DELTA EDUCATION LLC099249391483 101.53 
DEMCO INC032800391484 781.43 
SABRINA DENNEY BULL135865391485 74.37 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY032872391486 1,124.00 
EVA M DENTON136316391487 14.43 
BASTIAN DERICHS137331391488 42.74 
DEX MEDIA EAST LLC109850391490 232.95 
DIAMOND MARKETING SOLUTIONS133968391491 1,168.83 
DIESEL POWER EQUIPMENT CO INC137713391493 93.59 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473391497 4,231.47 
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC132669391498 691.60 
DIGITAL EXPRESS INC136179391499 1,235.11 
DIGITAL RIVER EDUCATION SVCS INC138677391500 789.95 
LINDA K DONOHUE135373391502 56.61 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DIST.28-0001130908391506 637,683.57 
DOUGLAS J DRUMMOND134298391507 103.45 
DUKE AERIAL INC139070391508 738.30 
DULTMEIER SALES LLC034120391509 86.55 
DUN & BRADSTREET INC133349391510 799.00 
JEANNE J DYMOND137117391511 31.08 
DYNA-KLEEN SERVICES INC100951391512 540.00 
EAGLE SOFTWARE INC,131740391513 502.50 
KELLY D EALY138426391514 66.10 
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO052370391515 409.02 
EDUCATION LOGISTICS, INC132240391516 3,030.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525391517 62,056.48 
EDWARD DON & COMPANY130769391518 624.68 
EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION SKILLS INC101277391519 1,000.00 
REBECCA S EHRHORN133823391520 524.48 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQPT CO038100391521 1,007.93 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140391522 3,238.49 
ELITE CONTRACTING GROUP LLC139059391523 22,385.35 
ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC132066391524 1,844.22 
TED H ESSER109066391525 148.29 
ETA/CUISENAIRE035610391526 67.08 
TARA R FABIAN134861391528 39.07 
JOHN T FABRY106735391529 208.13 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
FARIA SYSTEMS INC137800391530 1,010.00 
RLB ENTERPRISE LLC131927391531 394.50 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699391533 8,449.00 
FEDEX OFFICE AND PRINT SERVICES INC056724391534 123.26 
ALICIA C FEIST131826391535 64.82 
MARK W FELDHAUSEN040470391536 40.05 
ANGELA L FERGUSON137016391537 93.43 
FILTER SHOP INC133919391538 2,735.93 
BETH L FINK132001391539 41.85 
ESTELLA FINN136031391540 170.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755391542 169,129.07 
SHANNON M FISCHER109855391543 117.66 
DUANE FISHER139079391544 21.00 
FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC041086391545 944.97 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100391546 4,107.91 
KENNETH J FOSSEN041146391547 82.58 
TRICIA A FREEMAN135400391548 7.66 
DELTA EDUCATION LLC041530391549 1,158.86 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543391550 85.06 
ERIC W FULLER134168391551 56.94 
FUN AND FUNCTION LLC137663391552 517.97 
GALE GROUP109036391553 750.00 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660391554 1,200.45 
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES INC044886391555 720.00 
GOPHER044891391556 466.83 
KAREN A GORDON044896391557 23.14 
DIANE K GOSE136192391558 16.04 
BRITTNEY GOSSETT139075391559 50.00 
GP DIRECT043609391560 984.74 
GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY044950391561 1,158.53 
KATHERINE A GRAY044965391562 56.72 
GREATER OMAHA REFRIGERATION010250391563 50.89 
CATHERINE D GREENWALD044992391564 69.93 
HARRY S GRIMMINGER130083391565 29.43 
ANDREW J HAHN131686391566 28.86 
MICHELLE R HALL134436391567 89.91 
CARRIE A HAMILL139076391568 134.26 
CYNTHIA M HAMILTON045354391569 22.31 
HANCOCK FABRICS101931391570 213.18 
JAMES R HANLON136805391571 67.16 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853391573 29,300.60 
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820391574 204,464.61 
JEAN M HASTINGS136458391575 47.67 
MARVCO ENTERPRISES INC135990391576 308.35 
HEALTHY KIDS CHALLENGE FOUNDATION139005391577 692.51 
HEARTLAND SCENIC STUDIO INC100782391578 782.10 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MARGARET HEBENSTREIT PT108273391579 127.66 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517391580 112.20 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517391581 199.00 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478391582 160.65 
OMAHA ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY101881391583 96.75 
ALEXANDRA HERINK139080391584 50.00 
NICOLAS A HERINK137206391585 160.00 
JENNIFER HERZOG133186391586 80.00 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423391587 12,747.04 
CAMILLE H HINZ048845391588 53.62 
RICK W HOOK049330391589 110.45 
LINDA D HORTON095520391591 20.26 
HOTSY EQUIPMENT COMPANY049450391592 890.69 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO049650391593 83.82 
DIANE F HOWARD101533391596 21.03 
HUGHES MULCH PRODUCTS LLC137426391597 1,120.00 
HUSKER MIDWEST PRINTING101032391599 1,205.05 
MONICA A HUTFLES134807391600 23.37 
IBM CORPORATION051551391601 360.00 
POPCO INC051573391602 116.24 
INTERMEDIATE DISTRICT 287135481391603 55.00 
INTERNATIONAL SOCIETY FOR TECH ED134197391604 1,014.00 
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER102958391605 261.90 
J A SEXAUER101991391606 1,219.96 
ITHAKA138617391607 1,500.00 
J W PEPPER & SON INC.100928391608 1,219.94 
KORRINDA K JAMIESON136314391609 137.31 
JANELLE PUBLICATIONS INC054230391610 51.00 
CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN131157391611 75.81 
HANNELORE W JASA054240391612 48.29 
JSDO I LLC136953391613 419.09 
DEBBIE A JENKINS133059391614 109.28 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037391615 2,248.97 
AMANDA J JOHNSON131367391616 93.00 
SANDRA R JOHNSON139062391617 176.89 
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573391619 21.70 
BRENT HINKLE132434391620 150.00 
JP COOKE COMPANY026300391621 22.90 
KYLE A JURGENS135815391622 155.96 
DAVID KAHM137214391623 150.00 
TONI KARAUS138419391624 50.00 
CATHERINE A KEISER132265391625 103.90 
SUSAN L KELLEY132272391626 39.96 
DANIEL J KELLY138420391627 50.00 
JOSHUA KELLY138976391628 90.00 
JULIE B KEMP134801391629 27.75 

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ANDREA L KIDD131177391630 34.63 
DENNIS F KIMBERLIN132676391631 338.10 
BETTY H KLESITZ056770391632 77.15 
LARISSA K KNUDSON135946391633 228.55 
ELIZABETH A KOCIS138846391634 6.22 
KOHLL'S PHARMACY & HOMECARE INC106582391635 2,924.92 
KUBAT PHARMACY/HEALTHCARE133923391637 1,574.00 
JOSEPH R KUEHL137385391638 98.73 
VICTORIA L KYROS132934391639 23.31 
MCKAYLA LABORDE137694391640 70.09 
CHRISTINA A LAGRONE137010391641 74.65 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217391642 1,335.82 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775391643 5,807.50 
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES135257391644 251.07 
LORENE M LARSEN121124391645 93.24 
DENISE A LARSON135688391646 88.25 
JANET L LARSON136518391647 88.69 
LASEREQUIPMENT INC136951391648 65.00 
LAWSON PRODUCTS INC135156391649 722.32 
LEARNING HEADQUARTERS LLC138545391650 106.95 
JACEN D LEFHOLTZ108450391651 347.43 
BONNIE K LEVINGER137345391652 22.20 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470391653 198.00 
LINCOLN PUBLIC SCHOOLS099395391654 6,000.00 
LINGUISYSTEMS, INC.059577391655 180.70 
MATHESON TRI-GAS INC059560391656 1,350.47 
COURTNEY A LOHRENZ136315391657 22.64 
STACY L LONGACRE059866391658 186.48 
LORENZ CORPORATION136913391659 76.75 
KATHLEEN E LORSBACH132678391660 63.27 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397391661 805.38 
LRP PUBLICATIONS INC057770391662 127.05 
LUCKS MUSIC LIBRARY INC060125391663 80.86 
NATASHA E LUDWIG134568391664 23.10 
KEITH W LUTZ060153391665 274.00 
LYMAN-RICHEY CORPORATION060155391666 1,219.17 
CLARE MAAKESTAD137819391667 85.00 
MACKIN BOOK CO099321391668 4,659.51 
KEITH W MALY138473391669 77.70 
EARLY OUTDOOR SERVICES INC108303391670 2,412.00 
KAREN M MARBLE137007391671 58.28 
MARCO PRODUCTS INC063920391672 271.15 
SUSAN N MARLATT133505391673 56.06 
DAWN M MARTEN133201391674 221.23 
SCHOLASTIC INC139032391675 98.84 
MAX I WALKER108052391676 335.47 

17



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES INC138341391677 9,206.12 
MAXS BODY SHOP INC108227391678 5,910.02 
MJ-1 LLC101129391679 263.20 
DANIEL R MCCONNELL136618391680 75.76 
AMERICAN BUSINESS NETWORK100944391681 43.50 
MEGAN MCELFRESH139047391682 50.00 
DAVID G MCENANEY139077391683 86.83 
LAB SAFETY SUPPLY INC131101391684 537.05 
RYE L MCINTOSH137014391685 117.10 
MENARDS INC064413391686 95.12 
MENARDS INC138691391687 277.69 
ANGELA R MERCIER017611391689 86.58 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600391691 6,401.00 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403391694 9,109.67 
MID-AMERICA COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS064834391695 50.00 
MID-WEST 3D SOLUTIONS LLC102466391696 7,530.00 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870391697 1,066.53 
MIDWEST SYMPOSIUM FOR LEADERSHIP132456391698 160.00 
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC065233391699 1,929.63 
MIDWEST WOODWORKERS,  INC.065326391700 74.93 
MILLARD DRYWALL SERVICES, INC.065300391701 3,022.88 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND065410391702 738.10 
MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY131328391703 1,151.00 
ANNE C MILLER135388391704 20.95 
BARBARA F MILLER065564391705 69.38 
SANDRA R MILLER132412391706 45.23 
KAREN F MONTGOMERY066083391709 38.13 
MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC134532391710 27,900.00 
MELISSA MORTON139072391711 50.00 
DONITA L MOSEMAN132491391712 17.21 
HOLTZBRINCK PUBLISHER LLC092603391713 1,533.83 
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO063150391714 1,911.21 
DEVONYE J MULLINS137052391715 47.34 
MULTI-HEALTH SYSTEMS063115391716 1,566.68 
NASCO067000391718 23.00 
NATIONAL ASSN FOR GIFTED CHILDREN134953391719 99.00 
NCTM066671391720 78.00 
SCANTRON CORP130548391721 5,385.48 
STATE OF NEBRASKA134321391722 108.00 
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334391723 2,354.20 
NEBRASKA ASSN OF SCHOOL BOARDS068343391724 10,809.00 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL OF SCHOOL ATTORNEY068414391725 70.00 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL ON ECON ED/SMG068400391726 70.00 
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION068440391727 160.00 
NEBRASKA LUTHERAN OUTDR MINISTRIES136532391728 382.50 
NEBRASKA STATE READING ASSOC102590391729 960.00 

18



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JESSICA L NEILL138358391730 9.12 
ROBIN K NELSON069060391731 15.54 
ANDREW D NENEMAN137269391732 50.00 
LYNNE NEWVILLE069561391733 48.12 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843391734 6,694.42 
NILA J NIELSEN106326391735 106.89 
CARISSA N NIETFELDT136715391736 23.31 
DAVID M NOODELL069741391737 214.50 
NOTARY PUBLIC UNDERWRITERS INC133579391738 87.50 
NURSE PROVIDERS INC139001391739 1,764.00 
KELLY R O'TOOLE133368391740 54.95 
ANNE M OETH050042391741 162.06 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013391745 12,532.44 
OFFICENET133933391746 169.77 
OHARCO DISTRIBUTORS070245391747 732.00 
OLSSON ASSOCIATES INC136898391748 5,676.75 
OMAHA CASING CO INC134725391749 1,066.00 
OMBUDSMAN EDUCATIONAL SVCS LTD137824391750 108,150.00 
ON LINE IMAGING SERVICES LLC107815391751 4,131.40 
ONE SOURCE133850391752 1,286.00 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY071138391753 75.99 
CYNTHIA A ORSO134261391754 12.80 
MARY M OSTERLOH130092391755 64.16 
ANDREA M OTTE132008391756 69.85 
OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY OMAHA071190391757 620.00 
OZANAM/BIST132443391758 391.00 
ELIZABETH A PACHTA134428391759 298.42 
PAINTIN PLACE CERAMICS INC071515391760 1,056.30 
PAPER CORPORATION071545391761 48,577.20 
PAPIO TRANSPORT SCHOOL SERVICE INC138288391765 22,970.00 
GEORGE M PARKER137015391766 39.63 
ANDREA L PARSONS132006391767 150.41 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098391768 573.80 
CYNTHIA L PAVONE135569391769 50.62 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891391770 4,830.00 
WARFIELD PCI LIMITED071353391771 267.78 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652391772 15,238.80 
JANET PELSTER109831391773 55.50 
HEIDI T PENKE107783391774 41.07 
PERFECTION LEARNING CORP.072200391775 186.95 
SCOTT D PERSIGEHL138521391776 158.73 
VICKY L PETERSON134365391777 84.36 
MARY J PILLE130721391779 102.12 
ANDREW C PINKALL137722391780 334.34 
PIONEER VALLEY EDUCATIONAL PRESS132086391781 128.98 
PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC073040391782 20,000.00 

19



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
PITSCO INC072760391783 1,445.31 
JOSHUA PLANOS138520391784 50.00 
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP131835391785 6,907.25 
PRODUCTIVITY INC138487391786 1,605.96 
PROGRESS PUBLICATIONS073610391787 475.20 
PROTEX CENTRAL INC132713391788 850.00 
QUILL CORP077750391791 40.98 
MICHAEL T QUINT136035391792 77.59 
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.078420391795 24,585.00 
BETHANY B RAY109810391796 128.21 
CAITLIN E RAY138920391797 180.00 
DANIELLE R RAYMAN138357391798 196.14 
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642391799 735.39 
JENNIFER L REID134858391800 39.07 
BRETT M RHODES139082391801 20.58 
KIMBERLI R RICE109192391802 271.10 
AMBER E RIPA137470391803 533.30 
REECE RISTAU138963391804 50.00 
RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC136847391805 1,865.00 
PAIGE E ROBERTS138312391806 58.28 
DALE H ROBINSON079295391807 106.01 
KATHY ROCCO135301391808 160.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310391809 882.50 
ROCKLER COMPANIES INC102827391810 507.87 
LINDA A ROHMILLER134882391811 19.54 
MICHAEL P ELLIS139073391812 90.00 
ASHLEY L ROMSHEK138847391813 52.73 
EILEEN A RONCI134081391814 204.80 
ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC134824391815 50,330.00 
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023391816 300.00 
ROSENBAUM ELECTRIC INC079440391817 4,299.40 
JEAN M RUCHTI072286391818 204.80 
RURAL METRO MEDICAL SERVICES133572391819 1,020.00 
KATHRYN  I RYAN130477391820 23.10 
THOMAS J RZEMYK136595391821 230.89 
SAFETY KLEEN SYSTEMS INC101101391822 2,682.10 
LEONARD E SAGENBRECHT081495391823 7.33 
PATTERSON MEDICAL SUPPLY INC073300391824 136.80 
VWR CORPORATION081695391825 734.82 
KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS081725391826 69.04 
RYAN D SAUNDERS133389391827 127.00 
NATHAN SCHAAF138945391828 190.00 
BRENT J SCHADE109806391829 73.54 
SCHEMMER ASSOCIATES INC081880391830 1,197.00 
RONALD P SCHINSTOCK138274391831 7.32 
SHELLEY L SCHMITZ137012391832 31.97 

20



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION082200391833 237.97 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350391834 479.96 
SCHOOL-TECH INC099808391835 301.48 
KIMBERLY A SECORA082905391837 25.92 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910391838 2,768.35 
STAN J SEGAL108161391839 107.50 
KELLY M SELTING082941391840 101.01 
JODY L SEMPEK134189391841 263.70 
SHARED MOBILITY COACH INC133498391842 2,025.50 
AMY L SHATTUCK109800391843 123.21 
LARIA K SHEA137697391844 151.52 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175391845 145.38 
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.083188391846 925.86 
SHURLEY INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS102558391847 351.00 
SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC.131887391848 595.00 
SIGNAL 88 SECURITY GROUP LLC138176391850 272.00 
SILVERSTONE GROUP INC132590391851 8,926.00 
JULIA C SINIARD136137391852 129.43 
LORI L SMITH138275391853 31.64 
SNYDER CHARLESON THERAPY SERVICES132808391854 15,427.50 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093391855 35.80 
SOUTH OMAHA TERMINAL WAREHOUSE CO084081391856 295.60 
SPALDING EDUCATION INTERNATIONAL102524391857 30.24 
JOHN M SPEHN137660391859 14.53 
AMY ST AMOUR109836391860 105.45 
STANDARD STATIONERY SUPPLY CO084415391862 723.60 
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL INC137481391863 43.00 
STATE STEEL OF OMAHA134116391864 91.68 
TRACY L STAUFFER084491391865 160.95 
JULIE A STEDNITZ136440391866 25.31 
CYNTHIA F STIGGE084630391867 64.82 
SUSAN G STODDARD138276391868 33.30 
MEGAN K STUMP137867391869 152.18 
MUNIRA SUBAT138984391870 20.00 
CLAUDIA P SUCHA135744391871 175.00 
ERIN C SULLIVAN138848391872 59.55 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822391873 1,056.05 
SKC-SOUTHPORT INC131522391874 389.07 
SUMMIT LEARNING084781391875 50.15 
SUPER DUPER INC084930391876 287.54 
JAMES D SWITZER132417391877 268.54 
SYSCO LINCOLN INC099302391878 433.06 
TARGET088654391879 133.35 
DRAPHIX, LLC103050391880 412.32 
TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY133969391881 4,216.89 
TERRY HUGHES TREE SERVICE049700391882 21,600.00 

21



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ANNETTE J THOMAS136381391883 13.32 
NANCY C THORNBLAD107959391884 56.89 
GREGORY E TIEMANN132493391885 36.63 
JEAN M TOOHER106807391886 51.62 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446391887 2,577.88 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446391888 15,063.00 
TOTAL MARKETING INC089574391889 15.00 
TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES132138391890 499.88 
BRYAN TRAN137829391891 45.55 
AMERICAN STANDARD INC106364391892 2,363.40 
TRANSWORLD SYSTEMS INC138478391893 171.90 
MARIELA J TRIBULATO135247391895 276.65 
KIMBERLY P TRISLER107719391896 46.90 
DONNA R TROMBLA136110391897 54.67 
LYNNE A TRUMAN132268391898 47.73 
AUTO PROS OF MILLARD INC138047391899 1,802.00 
KATELYN TURNER138881391900 25.00 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819391901 136.53 
UNISOURCE WORLDWIDE INC090678391902 796.25 
UNITED EQUIPMENT SERVICES CO INC109861391903 14,092.90 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840391905 21.40 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840391906 675.00 
UNIVERSITY PUB, INC.090900391907 1,181.00 
D'NETTE M UPTAGRAFT109089391910 32.00 
USA-CLEAN INC138661391911 4,101.51 
UTILITY TRENCHING INC137707391912 17,701.00 
VAL LTD091040391913 109.54 
AUTO LUBE INC138046391914 335.29 
JENNIFER L VEST136318391916 110.17 
VEX ROBOTICS INC138328391917 749.33 
DAWN R WAGNER138311391918 13.21 
BARBARA N WALLER093008391919 108.75 
LINDA WALTERS131112391920 46.51 
WARD'S NATURAL SCIENCE EST LLC093650391921 163.48 
ANTHONY R WARD136617391922 2,990.00 
WATER ENGINEERING, INC.093765391923 1,096.00 
HEIDI J WEAVER133438391924 50.95 
JILL E WEDDINGTON132263391925 28.58 
BECKY S WEGNER093978391926 71.26 
CHERA A WENZL131142391927 9.43 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174391928 264.01 
CAROL M WEST107563391929 126.76 
WESTLAKE ACE HARDWARE INC094245391931 35.99 
KIM WHEATLEY130510391932 50.27 
DEBBY A WHITAKER094751391933 169.39 
WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC137878391934 1,368.67 

22



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SARA M WIESE-JOHNSON137892391935 70.32 
TAMARA J WILLIAMS136322391937 70.00 
WILLMER WELDING & FABRICATION LLC138439391938 714.00 
WINGS TRANSFER AND RIGGING CO139011391939 750.00 
STACIE A WITHERSPOON136323391940 91.80 
WOODWORKERS SUPPLY, INC.095355391941 539.78 
GLEN E WRAGGE095491391942 282.33 
PRAIRIE VENTURES LLC138930391943 90.56 
WURTH BAER SUPPLY CO109852391944 204.13 
XEROX CORPORATION  (ORDERS)101370391945 6,870.07 
JEFFREY F YOST138356391946 32.91 
YOUTHLIGHT INC.101717391947 153.42 
ANNA YUZ-MOSENKIS139081391948 27.22 
CHAD R ZIMMERMAN137020391950 249.75 
JOSEPH ZIMMERMAN138532391951 50.00 
MAUREEN F ZOHLEN136468391952 5.55 
PAUL  R ZOHLEN136855391953 56.66 
LACHELLE L ZUHLKE135647391954 68.71 

2,286,847.36 Total for GENERAL FUND
ABBOTT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL01014423466 28.80 
ACKERMAN ELEMENTARY13503323467 128.11 
ALDRICH ELEMENTARY13503423468 57.09 
ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL06542523469 4,844.44 
BEADLE MIDDLE SCHOOL13067423470 6,028.89 
BLACK ELK ELEMENTARY13503523471 94.61 
BRYAN ELEMENTARY13503623472 134.40 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL06542023473 4,876.11 
CODY ELEMENTARY13503823474 64.00 
COTTONWOOD ELEMENTARY13317823475 139.20 
DISNEY ELEMENTARY13503923476 241.21 
EZRA ELEMENTARY13259123477 168.00 
HARVEY OAKS ELEMENTARY13504023478 68.63 
HITCHCOCK ELEMENTARY13504123479 156.54 
HOLLING HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY13169423480 205.75 
KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL13428423481 5,562.78 
MILLARD HORIZON HIGH SCHOOL13505023482 3,182.78 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL06543823483 63,886.67 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND06541023484 414.85 
MILLARD SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL06544023485 51,652.22 
MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL06544323486 58,903.89 
MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY13504223487 160.83 
MORTON ELEMENTARY13337023488 78.99 
NEIHARDT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL13239823489 426.00 
NORRIS ELEMENTARY13504323490 224.40 
NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL13009123491 5,185.00 
REAGAN ELEMENTARY13684123492 122.40 

23



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
REEDER ELEMENTARY13504423493 135.38 
ROCKWELL ELEMENTARY13504523494 204.00 
ROHWER ELEMENTARY13504623495 132.30 
RUSSELL MIDDLE SCHOOL13161523496 5,493.33 
SANDOZ ELEMENTARY13504723497 107.14 
UPCHURCH ELEMENTARY13724523498 292.30 
WHEELER ELEMENTARY13504823499 156.16 
WILLOWDALE ELEMENTARY13504923500 148.95 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP13849623501 20.00 
HELGET SAFETY SUPPLY INC04851523502 94.16 
LASEREQUIPMENT INC13695123503 65.00 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC10984323504 172.24 
OFFICE DEPOT  8413351010001323505 833.78 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS08317523506 294.46 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES10147623507 1,052,260.59 

1,267,446.38 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

APPLE COMPUTER INC012989391381 8,340.00 
CONSTRUCT INC135287391460 34,850.60 
DELL MARKETING LP102577391482 77,700.00 
EAGLE SOFTWARE INC,131740391513 7,598.65 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870391697 2,119.96 
ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC134824391815 5,400.00 
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL INC137481391863 39.99 

136,049.20 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

NEBRASKA HUMANITIES COUNCIL108180391350 75.00 
STORY POWER COMMUNICATIONS INC138493391355 350.00 
AMAZON.COM INC107651391373 833.35 
AMSAN LLC069689391377 299.01 
AUTISM ASPERGERS PUBLISHING CO134427391386 137.80 
MARY A BOBKA132188391409 22.02 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559391414 422.31 
MELISSA A BRENDEL138566391418 286.75 
BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH020550391426 458.00 
JAMES R MINOR137791391429 600.00 
GUIDANCE GROUP INC097900391444 268.19 
COLLABORATIVE PD LLC138853391456 4,300.00 
CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOOKS099957391467 233.48 
MICHAEL L DEUTSCH138933391489 431.75 
DAVID M DIEHL135133391492 510.00 
MATTHEW L DOMINY135973391501 298.75 
EZRA ELEMENTARY132591391527 60.95 
FAT BRAIN TOYS LLC137477391532 291.10 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755391542 1,528.02 
TERRY P HOULTON132531391594 264.50 
MARLENE N HUNT135781391598 510.00 

24



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
KRISTI J KOZAK055039391636 286.75 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217391642 4,086.22 
LRP PUBLICATIONS INC057770391662 148.00 
MENTORING MINDS LP135331391688 473.88 
REBECCA A MERTINS135022391690 21.98 
MARY MIMICK139071391707 145.00 
MINDWARE100316391708 46.35 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL ON ECON ED/SMG068400391726 120.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013391745 63.84 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY071138391753 203.99 
HEIDI T PENKE107783391774 411.51 
PIECES OF LEARNING072500391778 48.90 
PRUFROCK PRESS INC073650391789 47.85 
RYAN D SAUNDERS133389391827 286.75 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350391834 21.09 
COLETTE J SCHWEERS135960391836 306.75 
KENT E SPEER082438391858 908.70 
STAFF DEVELOPMENT FOR EDUCATORS101378391861 199.00 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822391873 254.00 
TREETOP PUBLISHING INC089740391894 33.25 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840391904 55.50 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923391908 120.00 
CRISTINA T VERAZA138569391915 20.00 
MANSON WESTERN CORPORATION094350391930 175.34 
CHRISTINA L WILCOXEN136162391936 40.00 
JESSICA N ZAVADIL136452391949 908.70 

21,614.33 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587391463 123,531.24 

123,531.24 Total for 
OMAHA TRUCK CENTER INC139063391305 46,552.00 
DOUGLAS COUNTY TREASURER033901391337 15.00 
ADVANCED OFFICE INTERIORS CORP102832391363 3,307.25 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423391587 129,519.00 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775391643 228.00 
METAL LOGOS AND MORE102139391692 680.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350391834 754.56 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175391845 11,519.65 
SIGN SOLUTIONS INC133575391849 90.00 

192,665.46 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

AMAZON.COM INC107651391373 330.80 
DICK BLICK CO099220391407 126.48 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559391414 471.33 
DAVE CARLSEN023964391433 100.00 
REGG CARNES138324391435 60.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC099222391449 55.04 

25



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  March 5, 2012

Date: 2/29/2012

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731391473 747.60 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473391497 1,937.71 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660391554 314.50 
WILLIAM SPRAGUE, JR.132592391590 635.45 
BARBARA A HOVE134299391595 120.78 
J W PEPPER & SON INC.100928391608 35.99 
JIM L JOHNSON054492391618 820.00 
METAL LOGOS AND MORE102139391692 899.20 
MUSIC THEATRE INTERNATIONAL100883391717 673.50 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013391745 -18.93 
QUALITY PRODUCTS INC075376391790 133.27 
WADE S RANNEY137267391793 130.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310391809 1,065.00 
UPSTART-USE 138736090973391909 0.00 
MANSON WESTERN CORPORATION094350391930 227.23 

8,864.95 Total for ACTIVITY FUND
COLLABORATIVE PD LLC138853391456 -144.00 
ANTHONY R WARD136617391922 -119.60 

-263.60 Total for 

4,036,755.32 Report Total               

26



27





29



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Policy 6203

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: First Reading of Policy 6203: Curriculum, Instruction, and

Assessment-- Taught Curriculum – Lesson (Instructional)
Plans

ACTION DESIRED: __X__ First Reading

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: First Reading of Policy 6203

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Nancy Johnston, Andy DeFreece,
Charlene Snyder, and Tami Williams

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

30

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Taught Curriculum - Lesson (Instructional) Plans 6203

Lesson plans are the link between the written curriculum and the taught curriculum. The daily lesson plans shall be
used for the implementation of curriculum, instruction, and assessment.

All teachers are responsible for planning and generating weekly lesson plans. Lesson plans shall be aligned with
curriculum guides and reflect the various instructional needs of students. Lesson plans shall:

a. be aligned with course guides;
b. be compatible with the school and system wide curriculum (where applicable, design down from

course/level outcomes);
c. focus on short-term (i.e., daily and weekly) and long-term (i.e., by grading period and for the year) goals;
d. address student needs at appropriate levels of difficulty;
e. result in the alignment of content, instructional strategies, enablers indicators, and assessments;
f. ensure the use of instructional activities and materials that are selected to develop students’ motivation to

learn.

The building principal or the designee shall monitor the lesson plans of the teachers assigned to the principal’s
building.

Policy Adopted: May 17, 1999 Millard Public Schools
Revised: December 5, 2005; March 19, 2012 Omaha, Nebraska

31



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 6220

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Reaffirmation of Policy 6220: Curriculum, Instruction, and

Assessment-- Taught Curriculum - Organization of Instruction

ACTION DESIRED: __X__ Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm Policy 6220

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Nancy Johnston, Andy DeFreece,
Charlene Snyder, and Tami Williams

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

32

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Taught Curriculum - Organization of Instruction 6220

The Millard Board of Education is responsible for public education in the Millard Public School District. This
public education responsibility includes:

a) K-12 general education, and

b) Programming for birth to age 21 special education

The Board may elect to provide the educational programs for the general pre-school student population, adults and
other supplemental educational programs as provided by law.

The grouping and housing of instructional levels in school facilities throughout the district, and the administration of
the instructional program will be according to plans developed by the Superintendent and the administrative staff
and approved by the Board.

Legal Reference: Nebr. Rev. Stat. 79-526 district boards; schools; supervision and control

Policy adopted: July 20, 1992 Millard Public Schools
Revised: November 10, 1997; May 17, 1999; December 5, 2005 Omaha, Nebraska
Affirmed: March 5, 2012

33



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 6628

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services and Pupil Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Reaffirmation of Policy 6628: Curriculum, Instruction, and

Assessment—School Counseling

ACTION DESIRED: __X__ Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm Policy 6628

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Nancy Johnston, Andy DeFreece,
and Bill Jelkin

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

34

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

School Counseling 6628

The counseling program shall be an integral component of the academic mission of the school.

The counseling program shall identify and deliver the knowledge and skills all students should acquire by
facilitating the academic, career, and personal/social development of all students to become responsible and
productive individuals.

Every student has equitable access to the school counseling program. The school counseling program is
comprehensive in design and is delivered systematically to all students, recognizing that some students are in greater
need of counseling services than others. These services include individual student planning, curriculum, response
services, and systems support. It is a collaboration of parents, students, school counselors, administrators, teachers,
student services personnel and support staff working together for the benefit of every student.

Policy Adopted: June 16, 1975 Millard Public Schools
Revised: August 9, 1999; April 3, 2006 Omaha, Nebraska
Affirmed: March 5, 2012

35



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Affirm Policy 6635: Students with Disabilities

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012

DEPARTMENT: Special Education/Educational Services

TITLE AND Affirmation of Policy 6635: Students with Disabilities
BRIEF DESCRIPTION:

ACTION DESIRED: X Approval

BACKGROUND: N/A

RECOMMENDATIONS: Affirm Policy 6635

STRATEGIC PLAN: N/A

REFERENCE: Legal References cited in Policy

IMPLICATIONS OF
ADOPTION OR REJECTION: N/A

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE
PERSON(S): Charlene Snyder, Dr. Mark Feldhausen

SUPERINTENDENT’S
APPROVAL:

36

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment

Students with Disabilities 6635

All students with verified disabilities will be provided with a free appropriate public education, which includes
special education and related services, in conformity with individualized education programs.

Under the direction of the Superintendent, the administration shall establish and maintain procedures governing the
provision of special education and related services to students with disabilities in compliance with the Individuals
With Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), requirements of the Nebraska State Department of Education and all other
applicable laws and regulations, as amended from time to time.

Legal References: 20 U.S.C. Section 1401 et seq.
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-1110 et seq.
92NAC51, 92NAC55
34 C.F.R. Section 300.1 et seq.

Policy Adopted: Millard Public Schools
Revised: October 20, 1997; November 10, 1997; August 9, 1999; March 6, 2006 Omaha, Nebraska

Affirmed: March 5, 2012

37



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 9111 – Bylaws of the Board – Election of Officers 
 

 

MEETING DATE:     March 5, 2012 

 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 

 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  It is time to review the policies and rules in the 9000 Series. 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reaffirm Policy 9111 – Bylaws of the Board – Election of Officers. 
 

 

BACKGROUND:    
 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm the Policy 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

 

TIME LINE:    
 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

38

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Bylaws of the Board 

 

Election of Officers 9111 
 

 

Officers of the Board will be elected at the organizational meeting in January.  Ballots will be distributed to Board 

members present at the meeting for the election of each officer.  A secret ballot will be used for the election of each 

officer, but the total number of votes for each candidate shall be recorded in the minutes.  An officer will be elected 

when one individual receives a majority of the votes cast for a position.  No Board member is eligible to serve in 

more than one office at the same time.  No Board member may serve more than two consecutive years in the same 

office. 

 

Related Policies and Rules: 

 

Rule Approved:  September 2, 1980 Millard Public Schools 

Revised:  September 9, 1996; June 16, 2003 Omaha, NE 

Renumbered from 9121.1: June 16, 2003 

Reaffirmed:  March 5, 2012 

39



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Rule 9111.1 – Bylaws of the Board – Election of Officers 
 

 

MEETING DATE:     March 5, 2012 

 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 

 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  It is time to review the policies and rules in the 9000 Series. 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reaffirm Rule 9111.1 – Bylaws of the Board – Election of Officers 
 

 

BACKGROUND:    
 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm the Rule. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

 

TIME LINE:    
 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

40

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Bylaws of the Board 

 

Board Officers          9111.1 

 
The officers of the Board of Education shall be President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer.  The duties of the 

officers shall be: 

 

President: 

 

1. Preside at all regular and special meetings of the board. 

 

2. Call special meetings of the Board when conditions required for special meetings have been met. 

 

3. Be responsible for the orderly conduct of Board meetings. 

 

4. Consult with the superintendent in planning agendas. 

 

5. Represent the school district in all legal action. 

 

6. Appoint all special committees, subject to the approval of the Board. 

 

7. Sign any written contracts to which the school district may be a party. 

 

8. Countersign all orders on the treasurer for claims allowed by the Board. 

 

9. Countersign all orders on the county treasurer for the transfer of funds. 

 

10. Participate in and vote on all actions of the Board. 

 

 

Vice President: 

 

1. Assume duties of the president in his/her absence. 

 

2. Serve as the chairperson of the Board Committee of the Whole. 

 

3. Organize the procedure for the Board to consider and issue the Superintendent’s evaluation. 

 

4. Perform any other duties as designated by the president. 

 

 

Secretary: 

 

1. Keep an accurate record of all meetings. 

 

2. Send out legal notices of meetings. 

 

3. Notify all persons elected as members of the Board. 

 

4. Handle official correspondence of the School Board. 

 

5. Make required reports to county and state officials. 

 

6. Make the annual school census unless the board provides otherwise. 

 

41



7. Draw and sign orders on the school district treasurer for the payment of authorized claims. 

 

8. Draw and sign orders on the county treasurer transferring funds to the school district treasurer. 

 

9. Maintain classified accounts of receipts and disbursements of the general and building funds, and 

of such other funds as the Board may require. 

 

10. Compute withholding and social security taxes and retirement payments from salaries of teachers. 

 

11. Act as custodian of all school district securities, documents, title papers, and other records of the 

Board. 

 

12. Make available to the Superintendent all records and other information requested. 

 

13. Publish the budget. 

 

14. Keep a record of all written disclosures made by Board members pursuant to Board Policy 8250.  

The disclosure shall be kept on a ledger for a period of five years from the date of the Secretary’s 

last day in office and kept separately from the Secretary’s other records. 

 

15. Maintain all records required by the Accountability and Disclosure statutes of the State of 

Nebraska. 

 

Treasurer: 

 

1. Receive and be responsible for all school district money. 

 

2. Place funds in depositories approved by the Board. 

 

3. Disburse funds on orders signed by the president and secretary. 

 

4. Keep accurate records of all receipts and disbursement, showing the source of such receipts, to 

which funds the receipts belong, and the payees of all disbursements. 

 

5. Render such financial reports as the Board may require at any time. 

 

 

Legal Reference:  RRS 79-452; 79-453; 79-455 – President 

Legal Reference:  79-516.06 – Vice President 

Legal Reference:  RRS 49-14, 103.02; 79-456; 79-457; 79-458; 79-805; 79-806 – Secretary 

Legal Reference:  RRS 79-459; 79-460; 79-461; 79-809 – Treasurer 

 

Related Policies and Rules: 9111 

 

 

Bylaw Adopted: June 16, 2003 Millard Public Schools 

Reaffirmed:  March 5, 2012 Omaha, NE 

42

http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Bylaws%20of%20Board/9111.pdf


AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 9112 – Bylaws of the Board – Committees and Appointments 
 

 

MEETING DATE:     March 5, 2012 

 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 

 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  It is time to review the policies and rules in the 9000 Series. 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reaffirm Policy 9112 – Bylaws of the Board – Committees and Appointments 

 

 

BACKGROUND:    
 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm the Policy. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

 

TIME LINE:    
 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

43

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Bylaws of the Board 

 

Committees and Appointments 9112 
 

 

The Board shall establish standing and special committees. 

 

Board members shall not serve on any District committees except those established by the Board. 

 

Board members may be appointed to represent the Board and the District in state and local organizations. 

 

Board members shall not serve as an officer in a school-parent organization. 

 

In order to provide the district with the broadest views of its constituency, spouses of Board members may not serve 

on District planning, or advisory committees. 

 

 

Cross Reference: 10000R1 

 

Legal Reference:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-213 

 

Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 1990 Edition, 9th Edition 

 

Related Policies & Rules: 9112R1 

 

Policy Adopted:  April 28, 1980 Millard Public Schools 

Revised:  September 23, 1996; June 16, 2003 Omaha, NE 

Renumbered from 9130: June 16, 2003 

Reaffirmed:  March 5, 2012 

 

 

44

http://mps.schoolfusion.us/modules/groups/homepagefiles/cms/750516/File/Board%20Policies/Bylaws%20of%20Board/9112R1.pdf


AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Rule 9112.1 – Bylaws of the Board – Committees and Appointments 
 

 

MEETING DATE:     March 5, 2012 

 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 

 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  It is time to review the policies and rules in the 9000 Series. 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reaffirm Rule 9112.1 – Bylaws of the Board – Committees and Appointments 

 

 

BACKGROUND:    
 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm the Rule. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

 

TIME LINE:    
 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

45

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Bylaws of the Board 

 

Committees and Appointments 9112.1 
 

 

The Board President shall appoint Board members to serve on committees subject to approval by the Board: 

 

Standing Committees: 

 

 1. The Americanism Committee is required by law.  It shall consist of three Board members appointed each 

January of each year.   

 

 3. All Board members may be members on the District Strategic Planning Committee. 

 

 4. All Board members will serve on the Board Committee of the Whole. 

 

 

Special Committees: 

 

Special Committees of one or more members may be established by the Board as the need arises to carry out 

specified tasks and on the completion thereof shall automatically cease to exist.  Special Committees shall not be 

appointed to perform a task that falls within the assigned function of an existing standing committee. 

 

The Board President may appoint Board members to represent the Board in state and local organizations as 

authorized by the Board subject to approval by a voting majority of the Board: 

 

 1. Each January, the Board President shall appoint a delegate and alternate to the Nebraska Association of 

School Boards (NASB) Legislative Relations Delegate Assembly. 

 

2. Each January, the Board President shall appoint a delegate and alternate to the National School Board 

Association (NSBA) Federal Relations Network; provided, however, the Board desires to send a 

representative. 

 

3. Each January, the Board President shall appoint a delegate to the (NASB) Nebraska Association of 

School Boards – Board of Directors. 

 

4. Each January, the Board President shall appoint a delegate to the Board of Directors of the Millard Public 

Schools Foundation. 

 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-213 

 

Policy Adopted:  April 28, 1980        Millard Public Schools 

Revised:  September 23, 1996; November 4, 1996; June 16, 2003  Omaha, NE 

Renumbered from 9130.1: June 16. 2003 

Reaffirmed:  March 5, 2012 

 

46



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 9210 – Bylaws of the Board – Attorney 
 

 

MEETING DATE:     March 5, 2012 

 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 

 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  It is time to review the policies and rules in the 9000 Series. 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reaffirm Policy 9210 – Bylaws of the Board - Attorney 

 

 

BACKGROUND:    
 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm the Policy. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

 

TIME LINE:    
 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

47



Bylaws of the Board  

 

Attorney 9210 

 
The board may, at its discretion, appoint an attorney to perform desired legal services.  The attorney shall serve at 

the Board’s pleasure and be compensated at a mutually agreeable rate. 

 

Legal Reference:  RRS 79-4, 150 

 

Bylaws Adopted by the Board:  February 4, 1974 Millard Public Schools 

Revised: June 16, 2003 Omaha, NE 

Renumbered from 9250: June 16, 2003 

Reaffirmed:  March 5, 2012 

 

48



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 9220 – Bylaws of the Board – Auditor 
 

 

MEETING DATE:     March 5, 2012 

 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 

 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  It is time to review the policies and rules in the 9000 Series. 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reaffirm Policy 9220 – Bylaws of the Board - Auditor 

 

 

BACKGROUND:    
 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm the Policy. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

 

TIME LINE:    
 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

49

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Bylaws of the Board  

 

Auditor 9220 

 
DUTIES OF THE AUDITOR 

 

The duties of the independent auditor shall be as follows: 

 

To examine the balance sheet of the school district at the end of the fiscal year and the related statements of 

transactions in the various funds for the fiscal year then ended. 

 

To conduct such examination in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and to include such 

tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as are necessary in the circumstances. 

 

To render an opinion on the financial statements prepared at the close of the fiscal year. 

 

To prepare such financial statements for publication as may be required by law. 

 

To make such recommendations to the Board concerning its accounting records, procedures, and related 

activities as may appear necessary or desirable. 

 

To perform such other related services as may be requested by the Board. 

 

Legal Reference:  RRS 79-546 

 

Bylaws Adopted by the Board:  February 4, 1974 Millard Public Schools 

Revised: June 16, 2003 Omaha, NE 

Renumbered from 9260: June 16, 2003 

Reaffirmed:  March 5, 2012 

 

50



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reaffirm Policy 9330 – Bylaws of the Board – Approval of Administrative Regulations 
 

 

MEETING DATE:     March 5, 2012 

 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Office of the Superintendent 

 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  It is time to review the policies and rules in the 9000 Series. 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reaffirm Policy 9330 – Bylaws of the Board – Approval of Administrative Regulations 

 

 

BACKGROUND:    
 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Reaffirm the Policy. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

 

TIME LINE:    
 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Keith Lutz 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

51

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Bylaws of the Board  

 

Approval of Administrative Regulations        9330 

 
New administrative regulations or revisions of existing regulations may be approved or rejected under the following 

procedures: 

 

 1. The proposed new regulation or revision of an existing regulation shall be submitted to the Board 

in writing at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 

 

 2. The proposed new regulations or revisions of existing regulations may be approved or rejected at 

the meeting. 

 

 3.  The approval or rejection of the proposed regulation shall be by a majority vote of all members of 

the Board. 

 

Legal Reference:  79-807 

 

Bylaws Adopted by the Board:  March 4, 1991           Millard Public Schools 

Reaffirmed:  March 5, 2012                  Omaha, NE 

 

52



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Recognize the Millard Education Association for the 2013-14 

Teachers Contract. 

 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2012 

 

Department General Administration / Human Resources 

 

Title and Brief 

Description: In accordance with new bargaining laws, the MEA is seeking 

recognition in advance for the 2013-14 school year. 

 

Action Desired: Approval 

 

Background: On October 17, 2011, the Board of Education recognized the 

Millard Education Association (“MEA”) for purposes of 

negotiating the 2012-13 contract.  Since that time, the MEA 

and the District’s teams have been negotiating.  The Millard 

Education Association represents the teachers in collective 

bargaining matters.  Because of new laws becoming effective 

next year, the MEA is seeking advance recognition for the 

2013-14 contract.  A copy of the letter from MEA requesting 

the commencement of bargaining for the FYE14 contract is 

attached. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: It is recommended that the District recognize the MEA as the 

collective bargaining agent for teachers in the District for the 

Fiscal Year Ended 2014 employment contract. 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Timeline: Immediate 

 

Responsible 

Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Ken Fossen, Dr. Keith 

Lutz 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

53

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



54



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Recognize the Millard Education Association for the 2013-14 

Nurses Contract. 

 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2012 

 

Department General Administration / Human Resources 

 

Title and Brief 

Description: In accordance with new bargaining laws, the MEA is seeking 

recognition in advance for the 2013-14 school year. 

 

Action Desired: Approval 

 

Background: On December 5, 2011, the Board of Education recognized the 

Millard Education Association (“MEA”) for purposes of 

negotiating the 2012-13 contract.  The Millard Education 

Association represents the nurses in collective bargaining 

matters.  Because of new laws becoming effective next year, 

the MEA is seeking advance recognition for the 2013-14 

contract.  A copy of the letter from MEA requesting the 

commencement of bargaining for the FYE14 contract is 

attached. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: It is recommended that the District recognize the MEA as the 

collective bargaining agent for nurses in the District for the 

Fiscal Year Ended 2014 employment contract. 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Timeline: Immediate 

 

Responsible 

Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Dr. Jim Sutfin, Dr. Ken Fossen, Dr. Keith 

Lutz 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

55

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



56



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Ackerman Roofing Project (Phase III) 

 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Ackerman Roofing Project – the review of bids and 

awarding of the contract for a summer roofing project at Ackerman Elementary 

School. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously presented to the board. 

 

 Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached. 

 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Ackerman Elementary School Roofing 

Project (Phase III) be awarded to Scott Enterprises of Omaha in the amount of 

$333,795 and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be 

authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate.  This project will be done over the summer. 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

57

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



58



59



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for MNHS Roofing Project (Phase IV) 

 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for MNHS Roofing Project – the review of bids and awarding 

of the contract for a summer roofing project at Millard North High School. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously presented to the board. 

 

 Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached. 

 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Millard North High School Roofing 

Project (Phase IV) be awarded to Boone Brothers Roofing in the amount of 

$360,000 and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be 

authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate.  This project will be done over the summer. 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

60

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



61



62



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for MSHS Roofing Project (Phase III) 

 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for MSHS Roofing Project – the review of bids and awarding 

of the contract for a summer roofing project at Millard South High School. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously presented to the board. 

 

 Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached. 

 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Millard South High School Roofing 

Project (Phase III) be awarded to Boone Brothers Roofing in the amount of 

$490,000 and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be 

authorized and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate.  This project will be done over the summer. 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

63

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



64



65



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for AMS Carpet Replacement Project 

 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for AMS Carpet Replacement Project – the review of bids and 

awarding of the contract for a summer roofing project at Anderson Middle School. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously presented to the board. 

 

 Copies of the architect’s letter and the bid tab are attached. 

 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Anderson Middle School Carpet 

Replacement Project be awarded to Commercial Flooring in the amount of 

$135,000 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that the Associate 

Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute 

any and all documents related to such project. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate.  This project will be done over the summer. 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

66

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



67



1015 N th 98th St t S it 300 F b 22 2012
Omaha, NE 68114

BCDM PROJECT NO. 3023-09

BID TABULATION - MPS Andersen Middle School Flooring Replacement Contract

1015 North 98th Street, Suite 300 February 22, 2012

COMMERCIAL FLOORING 
SYSTEMS FLOORS INC GALASKA & SON MIDWEST FLOOR COVERING UNIVERSAL FLOORING

Lump Sum Base Bid $135,000 $144,361 $173,047 $141,388 $155,170 

Substitute Carpet Base Bid No ($25,843) - Shaw ($36,345) - J&J No ($25,670) - Shaw

BCDM PROJECT NO. 3023 09

Substitute Carpet Base Bid No ($25,843)  Shaw ($36,345)  J&J No ($25,670)  Shaw

Bid Security Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Alternates

Alt t 'A' $30 000 $36 284 $30 318 $32 346 $32 925Alternate 'A' $30,000 $36,284 $30,318 $32,346 $32,925

Alternate 'B' $24,000 $28,720 $19,304 $25,014 $22,875

Voluntary Substitutions
RUB-1 - Johnsonite - 

Replay Commotion 3/8"
Rubber Tile - RB Rubber 

- Zip Tile - In Bid

AlternatesAlternates

Alternate 'A' - Remove existing flooring and base, and add new resilient flooring and base, and porcelain tile floor and base where noted on the Drawings.

Alternate 'B' - Remove existing flooring and base, and add new resilient flooring and base where noted on the Drawings.

Page 1

68



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Cottonwood Heat Pump Replacement Project 

 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Cottonwood Heat Pump Replacement Project – the review 

of bids and awarding of the contract for a summer heat pump replacement project 

at Cottonwood Elementary School. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously presented to the board. 

 

 Copies of the engineer’s letter and the bid tab are attached. 

 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Cottonwood Elementary School Heat 

Pump Replacement Project be awarded to Sol Lewis Engineering Company in the 

amount of $291,150 (with such amount including the base bid and both alternates) 

and that the Associate Superintendent for General Administration be authorized 

and directed to execute any and all documents related to such project. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate.  This project will be done over the summer. 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

69

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 

4940 North 118th Street 
Omaha, NE 68164 
P: 402.491.4144 

www.morrisseyengineering.com 

 
 
 
 

February 28, 2012 
 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
Attn: Dr. Ken Fossen 
 
Project #11292: MPS Cottonwood Elementary School – HVAC  Improvements 
   
RE: Bid Proposals dated February 28, 2012 
 
Ken: 
 
Bids were received for the Cottonwood Elementary School: HVAC Improvements project at the 
Don Stroh Administration Center Conference Room A on February 28, 2012 at 1:30 p.m.  Per the 
attached bid tab, five bids were received. 
 
There were two alternates for this project: 
 
 Alternate #1:   Replace Five Additional Heat Pumps 
 Alternate #2:   Cooling Tower Drain Down Tank, Pump, and Piping 
 
After discussion with MPS District members, the scope of work covered under each alternate was 
deemed necessary and provided at a cost less than what would be expected if the referenced work 
was pursued at a later date under a separate, stand-alone project. 
 
Including alternates, the low bidder was Sol Lewis Engineering Company in the amount of 
$291,150 (two hundred ninety one thousand one hundred fifty dollars). 
 
Our estimate for the project construction cost (including the scope of work covered by the 
alternates) was $300,000 (three hundred thousand dollars). 
 
We recommend accepting both alternates and a contract be awarded to Sol Lewis Engineering 
Company in the amount of $291,150 (two hundred ninety one thousand one hundred fifty dollars). 
 
Please advise if you require any additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Nate Sheets, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
Enclosure 
 
c:   Ed Rockwell - Millard Public Schools 
      Kim Thompson – Millard Public Schools 
 

70



PROJECT:  MPS Cottonwood Elementary School
HVAC Improvements

BID DATE: February 28, 2012

BID TIME: 1:30 p.m.
MEI PROJECT NO.: #11292

BIDDERS BASE BID Alternate #1 Alternate #2 Addenda #1 Completion Date Bid Bond TOTAL BID Comments

Mechanical Systems $327,000 $24,800 $38,000 Yes July 31, 2012 Yes $389,800 None

N. Pitlor & Son $290,700 $21,550 $29,100 Yes June 25, 2012 Yes $341,350 None

Prairie Mechanical $260,000 $21,000 $30,300 Yes July 27, 2012 Yes $311,300 None

Ray Martin Company $274,400 $30,000 $39,000 Yes July 20, 2012 Yes $343,400 None

Sol Lewis $245,250 $19,100 $26,800 Yes July 20, 2012 Yes $291,150 None

BID TABULATION

$0

$0

Description of Bids
Base Bid: Perform and complete all work required for the HVAC Improvements as indicated in the Construction Documents and Addendum #1 dated 1/23/12.

Alternate Bids (Adds): #1:  Replace five additional heat pumps
#2:  Cooling tower drain down tank, pump, and piping

71



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Award of Contract for Hitchcock RTU Replacement Project 

 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Award of Contract for Hitchcock RTU Replacement Project – the review of bids 

and awarding of the contract for a summer roof top unit (RTU) replacement project 

at Hitchcock Elementary School. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: This is a summer project previously presented to the board. 

 

 Copies of the engineer’s letter and the bid tab are attached. 

 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the contract for the Hitchcock Elementary School Roof Top 

Unit Replacement Project be awarded to Controlled Comfort in the amount of 

$95,124 (with such amount including the base bid only) and that the Associate 

Superintendent for General Administration be authorized and directed to execute 

any and all documents related to such project. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate.  This project will be done over the summer. 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

72

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 

4940 North 118th Street 
Omaha, NE 68164 
P: 402.491.4144 

www.morrisseyengineering.com 

 
 
 
 

February 28, 2012 
 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
Attn: Dr. Ken Fossen 
 
Project #11293: MPS Hitchcock Elementary School – Rooftop Unit Replacement 
   
RE: Bid Proposals dated February 28, 2012 
 
Ken: 
 
Bids were received for the Hitchcock Elementary School: Rooftop Unit Replacement project at the 
Don Stroh Administration Center Conference Room A on February 28, 2012 at 2:00 p.m.  Per the 
attached bid tab, three bids were received. 
 
There were two alternates for this project: 
 
 Alternate #1:   RTU #5 Dehumidification Cycle & DCV 
 Alternate #2:   RTU #6 Dehumidification Cycle  
 
After discussion with MPS District members, it was determined the scope of work covered under 
each alternate did not provide significant enough improvements to the project as whole to warrant 
the additional cost above and beyond the original budget amount. 
 
Excluding alternates, the low bidder was Controlled Comfort in the amount of $95,124 (ninety five 
thousand one hundred twenty four dollars). 
 
Our estimate for the project construction cost was $75,000 (seventy five thousand dollars). 
 
We recommend accepting the base bid only and a contract be awarded to Controlled Comfort in 
the amount of $95,124 (ninety five thousand one hundred twenty four dollars). 
 
Please advise if you require any additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Nate Sheets, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
Enclosure 
 
c:   Ed Rockwell - Millard Public Schools 
      Kim Thompson – Millard Public Schools 
 

73



PROJECT:  MPS Hitchcock Elementary School
RTU Replacement

BID DATE: February 28, 2012

BID TIME: 2:00 p.m.
MEI PROJECT NO.: #11293

BIDDERS BASE BID Alternate #1 Alternate #2 Addenda #1 Completion Date Bid Bond TOTAL BID Comments

Controlled Comfort $95,124 $11,352 $9,940 Yes July 20, 2012 Yes $116,416 None

Mechanical Systems $107,800 $11,700 $10,100 Yes July 27, 2012 Yes $129,600 None

Ray Martin Company $112,000 $6,000 $5,000 Yes July 20, 2012 Yes $123,000 None

$0

$0

BID TABULATION

$0

$0

Description of Bids
Base Bid: Perform and complete all work required for the HVAC Improvements as indicated in the Construction Documents and Addendum #1 dated 1/23/12.

Alternate Bids (Adds): #1:  RTU #5 Dehumidification Cycle & DCV
#2:  RTU #6 Dehumidification Cycle

74



 
AGENDA ITEM: Administrator Recommended for Hire 
 
 
MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 
 
 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 
 
 
TITLE & DESCRIPTION:  Elementary Principal – Ackerman Elementary School 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND: The position was advertised on Millard’s job posting website and the NCSA website.  

Six internal and sixteen external applications were received.  The applications were 
reviewed by Dr. Jim Sutfin and Dr. Keith Lutz. Four internal and two external 
candidates were selected for an interview.  The interview team included: Dr. Jim 
Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, Angelo Passarelli, Andy DeFreece, Kevin Chick, Kim Saum-
Mills, Paula Peal, Terry Houlton, Jeanine Beaudin, Tara Fabian, Shauna Boyle, 
Nicole Burton, Sallye Lee, Jana Brandt, and Michele Madsen. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The superintendent’s recommendation is approval of James ‘Skip’ Hanlon for 

Principal at Ackerman Elementary School. Mr. Hanlon is currently an Assistant 
Principal at Wheeler Elementary School (June 2010-present).  Previously he was a 
CADRE Associate for Millard Public Schools (2008-2010) and a Math teacher at 
Beadle Middle School (2001-2008). 

 
 
Education: BA – Educational Leadership – Nebraska Wesleyan University (2000) 
 MA – Curriculum and Instruction – Doane College (2005) 
 MA – Educational Leadership – Doane College (2009) 
 
 
OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES:  N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
 
PERSON RECOMMENDING:  Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _____________________________________________________________   

75



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: March 5, 2012 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel items: (1) Resignation; (2) Hire; (3) Leave Of Absence 
 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 

   

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________________ 

76

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 
March 5, 2012 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

Recommend: The following Leave of Absence be accepted: 
 
1. Chera A. Wenzl – Special Education Preschool teacher at Montclair Elementary 

School.  She is requesting a Leave of Absence (Year 1) for the 2012-2013 school 
year for family reasons.  

2. Kristen L. McKenney – Special Education teacher at Rohwer Elementary 
School.  She is requesting a Leave of Absence (Year 1) for the 2012-2013 school 
year for family reasons. 

 

77



March 5, 2012 
 
 
 

RESIGNATIONS 
 
 
Recommend: The following resignation be accepted: 
 

 

1. Kelli A. Hjelm – Special Education Resource teacher at Andersen Middle School.  
Resigning because of family relocation at the end of the 2011-2012 school year. 

2. Maureen R. Preble – Math teacher at Millard North High School. Resigning at the end of 
the 2011-2012 school year because of another job in education. 

3. Jaymie L. Thorson – Business teacher at Millard North High School.  Resigning at the 
end of the 2011-2012 school year because of family responsibilities. 

4. Megan A. Schmidt – Special Education Resource teacher at Cody Elementary School.  
Resigning at the end of the 2011-2012 school year because of family relocation. 

5. Kent A. Krause – Music teacher at Millard West High School. Resigning because of 
family relocation at the end of the 2011-2012 school year. 
 

 

78



March 5, 2012 
 

 
TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 
 
Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2012/2013 school year: 
 

1. Kate A. Solberg – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. CORE Teacher at Cather Elementary 
School for the 2012-2013 school year.  Previous Experience: Elkhorn Public Schools (1999-
2005) 

2. Kayla J. Childress – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Media Specialist at Cather 
Elementary School for the 2012-2013 school year.  Previous Experience: Currently a CADRE 
teacher in the same position.  
 

79



February 20, 2012
Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment

SpEd

Cluster Current Current YTD 9/20/2011

Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment

Abbott (3 unit) 71 62 75 85 68 70 431 -1 -2 433

Ackerman (4 unit) 79 71 89 90 97 92 518 2 10 508

Aldrich (3 unit) 61 61 91 66 67 93 439 1 -3 440

Black Elk (4 unit) 57 71 87 83 96 102 496 0 2 494

Bryan (3 unit) 62 56 59 67 59 62 365 -2 2 363

Cather (3 unit) 67 76 71 91 81 59 445 1 -4 449

Cody (2 unit) 42 31 30 28 28 37 12 208 4 -5 209

Cottonwood (3 unit) 58 64 61 52 54 60 349 -1 1 348

Disney (3 unit) 58 47 38 44 45 40 14 286 -5 -2 288

Ezra Millard (3 unit) 72 61 61 63 68 61 12 398 -2 1 397

Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 42 39 53 47 47 48 276 -1 0 276

Hitchcock (2 unit) 44 35 39 30 30 36 17 231 0 -8 239

Holling Heights (3 unit) 56 63 67 64 57 60 10 377 8 1 361

Montclair (4 unit) 85 89 89 84 83 88 518 1 0 518

Morton (3 unit) 44 55 55 50 58 62 12 336 1 -2 334

Neihardt (4 unit) 78 79 99 86 93 102 537 1 -12 549

Norris (3 unit) 64 59 71 55 50 55 354 1 6 348

Reagan (4 unit) 131 122 113 124 107 97 694 -3 -1 695

Reeder (3 unit) 100 82 92 65 96 86 14 535 1 5 530

Rockwell (3 unit) 59 55 53 60 51 56 16 350 -2 0 349

Rohwer (3 unit) 70 88 53 67 85 81 17 461 1 -3 464

Sandoz (3 unit) 68 47 55 52 60 39 321 4 14 307

Upchurch   (3 unit) 97 105 113 83 73 64 535 -1 -5 540

Wheeler (4 unit) 92 78 98 100 104 112 23 607 2 8 599

Willowdale (3 unit) 62 61 61 63 68 70 385 4 5 380

Totals 1719 1657 1773 1699 1725 1732 147 10452 8 34 10418

SpEd 9/20/2011

Middle 6 7 8 Prgm* Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 272 249 255 776 1 7 769

Beadle MS 358 331 268 26 957 2 0 957

Central MS 246 248 256 22 750 2 -3 753

Kiewit MS 296 296 288  880 1 -3 883

North MS 257 244 315 18 816 -2 -7 823

Russell MS 291 292 286 869 -3 2 872

MS Alternative 4 11 18 33 2 12 21

Totals 1724 1671 1686 66 5081 4 3 5078

High 9 10 11 12  --  --  --

North HS 621 614 611 557 24 2403 -13 -46 2449

South HS 504 504 494 422 34 1924 -8 -56 1980

West HS 597 593 541 479 34 2210 -12 -48 2258

Horizon HS 0 0 33 70 103 -4 -19 122

Totals 1722 1711 1679 1528 92 6640 -37 -169 6809

*Sped Program Included in MS/HS Grade Level totals Contracted SPED 51 4 1 49

HS Totals reflect early grads YTD: MWHS 33; MHHS 37; MSHS 45; MNHS 26 Young Adult Program 47 0 -3 50

Preschool SPED Not SPED Total                      Ombudsman (Primary) 20 -2 6 14

Bryan 3 34 37 Total District K-12 22291 -24 -127 22418

Cody 76 34 110 Total District PreK-12 23004 -11 -46 23050

Cody Early Start 7 9 16

Disney 19 16 35

Hitchcock 34 10 44 Elementary Elementary 10418

Holling Heights 1 18 19  Middle School 5081 Middle Sch 5078

Montclair 35 9 44 High School 6640 High Sch 6809

Montclair Montessori 2 82 84 Contracted 51 Contracted 49

Neihardt 3 61 64 Young Adult 47 Young Adult 50

Norris ELL 2 15 17 Ombudsman (Primary) 20 Ombudsman (Primary) 14

Norris Montessori 0 19 19   TOTAL 22291   TOTAL 22418

Rockwell 1 17 18

Sandoz 16 5 21

Sandoz ELL 5 31 36

Wheeler 32 10 42

Homebased Infants 107 107

TOTAL 713

Career Academies NHS SHS WHS HHS TOTAL

Culinary 9 5 8 22

Education 9 7 24 40

Entrepreneurship 3 7 13 23
Finance 7 1 6 14
Health Services 24 17 21 1 63
Dist/Log Mgmt 3 5 8
Ombudsman  (Primary and Secondary Assignment) 34

2/20/2012 9/20/2011

10452

22,148
22,432 22,418 22,432

22,397 22,384 22,315 22,291

19,000

19,500

20,000

20,500

21,000

21,500

22,000

22,500

Sep-10 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12

K-12 Enrollment 2011-12

80



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED

Abbott 25 21 17 20 23 23
23 21 19 22 23 24
23 20 19 22 22 23

20 21
Total Students 71 62 75 85 68 70 431 -1 -2 433 431
Total Teachers 3 3 4 4 3 3 20 20
Classroom Avg 23.67 20.7 18.8 21.7 22.7 23.3 22 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K                 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Ackerman 19 23 22 22 24 22
20 24 23 23 24 25
19 24 22 23 24 22
21 22 22 25 23

Total Students 79 71 89 90 97 92 518 2 10 508 518
Total Teachers 4 3 4 4 4 4 23 23
Classroom Avg 19.8 23.7 22.3 22.5 24.3 23.0 23 23

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Aldrich 20 21 23 21 23 22
21 20 23 23 21 24
20 20 23 22 23 23

22 24
Total Students 61 61 91 66 67 93 439 1 -3 440 439
Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 3 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 20.3 20.3 22.7 22.0 22.3 23.7 23 23

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Black Elk 19 23 22 23 24 26
19 23 21 23 24 25
19 25 21 17 24 24

23 20 24 27

Total Students 57 71 87 83 96 102 496 0 2 494 496
Total Teachers 3 3 4 4 4 4 22 22
Classroom Avg 19.0 23.7 21.8 20.8 24.0 25.5 23 23

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Bryan 21 19 18 22 20 20
20 18 20 22 20 21
21 19 21 23 19 21

Total Students 62 56 59 67 59 62 365 -2 2 363 365
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 20.7 18.7 19.7 22.3 19.7 20.7 20 20

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cather 23 14 14 25 24 16 23 23 23 17 17 22
21 15 11 25 24 24 23 24 16 21

Total Students 44 29 25 50 48 16 23 47 46 41 33 43 445 1 -4 449 445
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 22 22
Classroom Avg 22.0 14.5 12.5 25.0 24.0 16.0 23.0 23.5 23.0 20.5 16.5 21.5 20 20

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Cody 21 16 16 13 13 20 7
21 15 14 15 15 17 5

Total Students 42 31 30 28 28 37 12 208 4 -5 209 196
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 21.0 15.5 15.0 14.0 14.0 18.5 6.0 15 16

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cottonwood 20 22 20 25 28 20
19 21 21 27 26 19
19 21 20 21

Total Students 58 64 61 52 54 60 349 -1 1 348 349
Total Teachers 3 3 3 2 2 3 16 16
Classroom Avg 19.3 21.3 20.3 26.0 27.0 20.0 22 22

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Disney 21 24 19 22 23 21 7
19 23 19 22 22 19 7
18

Total Students 58 47 38 44 45 40 14 286 -5 -2 288 272
Total Teachers 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 15 13
Classroom Avg 19.33 23.50 19.00 22.00 22.50 20.00 7 19 21

81



Class

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment SPED

Ezra Millard 17 21 21 22 23 20 8
18 20 21 20 22 20 4
18 20 19 21 23 21
19

Total Students 72 61 61 63 68 61 12 398 -2 1 397 386
Total Teachers 4 3 3 3 3 3 2 21 19
Classroom Avg 18.0 20.3 20.3 21.0 22.7 20.3 6 19 20

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 21 20 17 24 23 23
21 19 17 23 24 25

19
Total Students 42 39 53 47 47 48 276 -1 0 276 276
Total Teachers 2 2 3 2 2 2 13 13
Classroom Avg 21.0 19.5 17.7 23.5 23.5 24.0 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Hitchcock 22 16 18 15 14 18 17
22 19 21 15 16 18

Total Students 44 35 39 30 30 36 17 231 0 -8 239 214
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 22.0 17.5 19.5 15.0 15.0 18.0 17.0 17 18

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Holling Heights 20 19 24 20 18 21 4
18 23 20 22 20 18 6
18 21 23 22 19 21

Total Students 56 63 67 64 57 60 10 377 8 1 361 367
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 18.7 21.0 22.3 21.3 19.0 20.0 5.0 19 20

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Montclair 17 23 20 22 20 24 16 22 22
20 22 22 23 18 22 16 20 23

16 22 19
22 23
22
22

Total Students 37 45 42 45 38 46 48 130 87 518 1 0 518 518
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 18.5 22.5 21.0 22.5 19.0 23.0 16.0 21.7 21.8 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Morton 21 15 19 14 18 20 5
23 19 18 17 21 21 7

21 18 19 19 21

Total Students 44 55 55 50 58 62 12 336 0 -2 334 324
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 3 2.0 19 17
Classroom Avg 22.0 20.0 18.3 16.7 19.3 20.7 6.0 18 19

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Neihardt 20 18 19 21 24 24
19 20 19 22 24 26
19 21 21 22 22 25
20 20 20 21 23 27

20
Total Students 78 79 99 86 93 102 537 1 -12 549 537
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 24 24
Classroom Avg 19.5 19.8 20.0 21.5 23.3 25.5 22 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Norris 20 19 24 18 20 19 14 21 12
20 18 24 21 21 18 10 21 15

19

Total Students 40 37 48 39 41 37 24 61 27 354 1 6 348 354
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19 19
Classroom Avg 20.0 18.5 24.0 19.5 20.5 18.5 12.0 20.3 13.5 19 19

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Reagan 22 22 22 22 22 24
22 21 22 22 23 25
21 21 23 22 20 24
22 22 23 23 21 24
22 22 23 23 21
22 14 12

Total Students 131 122 113 124 107 97 694 -3 -1 695 694
Total Teachers 6 6 5 6 5 4 32 32
Classroom Avg 21.8 21.6 22.6 20.7 21.7 24.3 22 22

82



SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 20 21 24 22 24 19 7
20 20 22 21 22 22 7
20 21 23 22 25 23
19 20 23 25 22
21

Total Students 100 82 92 65 96 86 14 535 1 5 530 521
Total Teachers 5 4 4 3 4 4 2 26 24
Classroom Avg 20.0 20.7 23.0 21.5 23.7 21.3 7.0 21 22

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rockwell 20 18 19 20 26 19 9
19 19 16 20 25 18 7
20 18 18 20 19

Total Students 59 55 53 60 51 56 16 350 -2 0 349 334
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 19 17
Classroom Avg 19.7 18.5 17.5 20.0 25.5 18.7 8.0 18 20

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rohwer 23 21 18 22 21 28 9
24 24 18 23 20 25 8
23 24 17 22 22 28

19 22

Total Students 70 88 53 67 85 81 17 461 1 -3 464 444
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 4 3 2 22 20
Classroom Avg 23.3 22.0 17.7 22.3 21.3 27.0 8.0 21 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 22 16 18 17 20 19
23 15 19 18 20 20
23 16 18 17 20

Total Students 68 47 55 52 60 39 321 4 14 307 321
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 2 17 17
Classroom Avg 22.7 15.7 18.3 17.3 20.0 19.5 19 19

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 20 23 23 22 24 22
19 20 23 20 25 21
19 21 22 21 24 21
19 19 23 20
20 22 22

Total Students 97 105 113 83 73 64 535 -1 -5 540 535
Total Teachers 5 5 5 4 3 3 25 25
Classroom Avg 19.4 21.0 22.6 20.8 24.3 21.3 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Wheeler 24 20 22 21 23 24 9
22 20 20 21 27 19 8
22 18 18 18 27 22 6
24 20 20 20 27 24

18 20 23

Total Students 92 78 98 100 104 112 23 607 2 8 599 584
Total Teachers 4 4 5 5 4 5 3 30 27
Classroom Avg 23.0 19.5 19.6 19.8 26.0 22.4 7.7 20 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Willowdale 21 21 21 21 21 24
21 20 20 21 23 23
20 20 20 21 24 23

Total Students 62 61 61 63 68 70 385 4 5 380 385
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 20.7 20.3 20.3 21.0 22.7 23.3 21 21

Elementary Totals SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment
Students 1719 1657 1773 1699 1725 1732 66 70 55 54 60 147 10452 8 34 10418 10305
Teachers 85 79 83 79 76 75 9 6 21 513 492
Classroom Avg 20.2 21.0 21.4 21.5 22.7 23.1 7.0 20.37 20.945

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
6 7 8 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 272 249 255 776 1 7 769
Beadle MS 358 331 268 26 957 2 0 957
Central MS 246 248 256 22 750 2 -3 753
Kiewit MS 296 296 288 880 1 -3 883

North MS 257 244 315 18 816 -2 -7 823
Russell MS 291 292 286 869 -3 2 872
MS Alternative 4 11 18 33 2 12 21
Totals 1724 1671 1686 66 5081 4 3 5078

9 10 11 12
North HS 621 614 611 557 24 2403 -13 -46 2449
South HS 504 504 494 422 34 1924 -8 -56 1980
West HS 597 593 541 479 34 2210 -12 -48 2258
Horizon HS 0 0 33 70 103 -4 -19 122
Totals 1722 1711 1679 1528 92 6640 -37 -169 6809

Contracted SPED 51 51 4 1 49
Young Adult Program 47 47 0 -3 50
Ombudsman (Primary Enrollment) 20 20 -2 6 14

Total District Enrollment 22291 -24 -127 22418

83



 

 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Legislative Update 
 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2012 
 

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Legislative Update for the 103rd Legislature 2nd session. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL          DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY   XX      

 

The legislative summary is attached.   

 

 

   

 

 

 

   

RECOMMENDATION:   

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Implemented Strategies and Superintendent’s Goals 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON:  Angelo Passarelli 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  

        (Signature) 

 

 

84

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Legislative Update 

March 5, 2012 

 

The Education Lobby was told by Senators Adams that it is unlikely that additional funds will 

be appropriated above the current 852 million.  The 60 million in funding that is being talked 

about will likely be used for HHS.  It also appears that the Governor’s tax cut is unsustainable.    

 

Bills of special interest 

LB 446 introduced by Senator Adams was advanced.  This bill restores ESU 18 and 19 for 

Lincoln and Omaha.  

 

LB 996 introduced by Senator Wightman eliminates the option of dropping out at age 16 

advanced on General File. 

 

LB 933 introduced by Senator Ashford also appears on the General File agenda.  This bill 

changes the rules for truancy.   

 

I attached all of the bills we are tracking this session. 

 

National News 

Obama encourages states to stop cutting education funds 

Some states have gone too far in cutting funds for education, President Barack Obama told 

governors attending a luncheon on Monday. While he acknowledged the states' financial 

difficulties, he encouraged them to stop cutting funds for education while continuing to enact 

reforms. "Nothing more clearly signals what you value as a state than the decisions you make 

about where to invest," Obama said. "Budgets are about choices, so today I'm calling on all of 

you: Invest more in education, invest more in our children and in our future." 

 

Teacher-evaluation reform is problematic in some states: 

About a dozen states have agreed to evaluate teachers in new ways in an effort to receive 

federal Race to the Top funds. However, some states have encountered problems with the 

evaluations, which include more classroom observations and emphasis on standardized 

testing. In Tennessee, principals say the evaluations are burdensome and, in some cases, do 

not reflect teachers' effectiveness. Delaware was unable to adopt a system based on student 

growth because of a lack of data, and Maryland has postponed a similar requirement. 

 

85

http://r.smartbrief.com/resp/dvvuDwdXCcpDlgCicOiEBWcNkArv?format=standard
http://r.smartbrief.com/resp/dvanDwdXCcnerQCicOiECicNfsJP?format=standard


BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB33 Louden Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land

Beginning January 1, 2012 Ag and horticultural land shall be valued at 70 rather than 75% of its actual 
value.  Changes acceptable range for valuation from 69-75% to 64-70% of actual value.  Changes state aid 
value of ag and horticultural land to 67 rather than 72%.  

Revenue
01/21/11 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB50 Krist Adopt the Elementary and Secondary Educational Opportunity Act and provide for income tax credits

Provides income tax credits for contributions to entities that provide scholarships to children attending 
privately operated elementary or secondary schools.  Scholarships can only be granted to kids of certain 
incomes. For grades K-8, the household income eligibility is three times the standard for free or reduced 
price lunch; for grades 9-12 the eligibility is increased to four times.

Revenue
02/16/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB53 Krist Change free transportation provisions relating to learning community students

Provides that Learning Community school districts must provide free transportation to students residing in 
the learning community and attending school in the school district if the student is transferring pursuant to 
the open enrollment provisions of section 79-2110 and either (i) is a
student who contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment at the school building to which he or 
she attends, transfers and lives more than one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, or (ii) is a 
student attending a focus school or program and lives more than one mile from the school building housing 
the focus school or program.

Deletes eligibility for free and reduced lunch kids who don't affect diversity of building.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB58 Adams Provide for a study of dual-enrollment courses and career academies

Provides that the Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education should study dual enrollment 
courses and report to the Legislature before December 15, 2011.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

LB58 
amended into 
LB637

Support

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY

102nd Legislature - Second Session - 2012

530 South 13th Street | Suite 110 | Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

Page 1 of 20 2/29/2012

86



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB123 Heidemann Provide for disciplinary actions and policies relating to cyber-bullying

Provides that cyber-bullying shall constitute, in some cases, grounds for long-term suspension, expulsion, 
or mandatory reassignment.  Cyber-bullying means any ongoing use of electronic mail, text messaging, 
social networking web sites, or any other form of electronic communication, on or off of school grounds, 
with the intention of causing harm or serious emotional distress to students or school personnel. Requires 
school districts to develop policies concerning cyber-bullying prevention and education.

Education
01/18/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB125 Avery Create the Children's Health Advisory Committee

To create and provide duties for the Children's Health Advisory Committee, to provide duties for the chief 
executive officer of the Department of Health and Human Services and the Commissioner of Education to 
provide for and require schools to implement nutrition and physical activity standards.

Health and 
Human Services
02/10/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

Oppose

LB145 Haar Provide for school transportation safety committees

Provides for creation of school transportation safety committees and submission of child access routing 
plans for each school within a school district.  Further provides for committee procedures when a new 
school is proposed.  

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB148 Avery Exclude lobbying expenses from the definition of general fund operating expenditures for state aid to 
education purposes

The one-liner says it all.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

LB148 
amended into 
LB 235

Oppose

LB149 Avery Adopt the Blind Persons Literacy Rights and Education Act

Provides that a teacher employed by or under contract with a school district, educational service unit, other 
education agency, or the State Department of Education who teaches blind or visually impaired children 
shall demonstrate competence in reading and writing Braille. Provides how such demonstration may be 
made.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB173 Avery Prohibit natural resources district board members from running for or holding more than one office

No person serving in a natural resource district shall simultaneously hold another high elective office.
  

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/02/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Monitor ?

Page 2 of 20 2/29/2012

87



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB189 Council Adopt the Criminal Offender Employment Act

On an initial application for public employment, there shall be no question or checkbox for the applicant 
regarding the applicant's criminal record. Any criminal record of the applicant shall not operate as an 
automatic bar to otherwise qualified applicants in obtaining public employment and shall only be taken into 
consideration after the applicant has been selected as a finalist for employment. Certain criminal records 
shall not be used in connection with application for public employment.

Business and 
Labor
01/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Oppose

LB192 Council Require school districts to offer instruction in sexual health education

Provides that beginning with school year 2012-13, each school district must offer instruction in sexual 
health education with a curriculum pursuant to listed criteria in the bill and State Board of Education 
regulations.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB236 Adams Change provisions relating to state aid to schools

Reduces the base limitation rate for school district to 0% for 2011-12 and 2012-13, which would affect 
budget lids and several elements of the aid formula.  Elements of the budget lids would be permanently 
modified.  Modifications reducing total amount of state aid:  The cost growth factor would be permanently 
reduced by eliminating the factor that is added on to the two years of basic allowable growth rates in the 
calculation.  Need stabilization and the averaging adjustment would be eliminated beginning with the 2011-
12 calculation of aid.  The local effort rate would be increased from $1.00 to $1.025 for 2011-12 and 2012-
13.  The allocated income tax reduction would be extended for 2011-12 and 2012-13 and would be 
increased to $21 million. NCSA Summary.

It is estimated that LB236 would decrease the amount of state aid distributed in FY2011-12 by $184.8 
million and the amount distributed in FY2012-13 by $231.9 million of general funds.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB247 Pahls Adopt the Classrooms First Act

Requires 65% or more of each district’s total operating expenditures on direct classroom instruction 
beginning in 2012-13.  Defines what constitutes “direct classroom instruction”. Requires Commissioner of 
Education to send an “intervention team” to any district failing to comply, in order to help the school board 
and administration meet the requirements of the legislation.  Beginning in 2013-14, failure to comply for 
three consecutive years would mean loss of accreditation. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB266 Sullivan Change the Open Meetings Act relating to closed sessions

Provides that a public body may go into closed session for the evaluation of the job performance of a 
nonelected official or employee if such person has not requested a public meeting.  Current statute provides 
the body may go into closed session for evaluation of the job performance of a person when necessary to 
prevent needless injury to the reputation of a person and if such person has not requested a public meeting.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/26/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Support

Page 3 of 20 2/29/2012

88



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB273 Dubas Change the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act to provide for converted contracts and 
converted contract option students

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

LB273 
amended into 
LB 235

Support

LB287 Adams Change provisions relating to summer school and early childhood summer sessions

Expands the existing TEEOSA summer school allowance for students enrolled in a summer session of an 
early childhood education program.  Changes the calculation of the allowance.  Further provides that each 
school district will receive an additional six-tenths of a summer school student unit for each early childhood 
education student unit attributed to a free lunch and free milk. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

LB287 
amended into 
LB235

Support

LB364 Fischer Change provisions relating to calculation of state aid to schools

Revises state aid formula to eliminate the instructional time allowance, the teacher education allowance, 
and the student growth adjustment for computation of state aid in school fiscal year 2011-12 and beyond.  
Although the effect on individual school districts is not yet known, Senator Fischer has indicated her intent 
was to reduce the total liability for state aid to schools.  NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB381 Speaker Flood Change provisions relating to educational service units, withdraw from the Compact for Education, and 
eliminate a student achievement coordinator

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor

LB439 Heidemann Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land for school tax purposes

Provides that for school district taxation purposes, agricultural and horticultural land shall be valued at 65% 
of its actual value, and greenland 65% of its special value.  Provides that the acceptable range of TERC 
variation for such land for school district taxation purposes is 59% to 65% of actual value.  For purposes of 
TEEOSA, provides that agricultural and horticultural land has a state aid value of 62% of actual value and 
greenland has a state aid value of 62% of the special valuation. NCSA summary.  

Revenue
03/03/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB446 Adams Change duties and funding provisions relating to educational service units

Provides that an ESU may consist of a single school district if that district is a Class IV or Class V district.  
Provides that only an ESU with four or members or that is composed of a single Class IV or V school 
district may levy a tax.  Provides for the calculation of the adjusted students number for a single member 
ESU.  Provides that it is the intent of the legislature that each multidistrict ESU use 5% of its funding for 
core services and technology infrastructure for cooperative projects between member school districts and 
5% for core services and technology infrastructure statewide projects.  

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

01/26/12 02/09/12 02/24/12 Oppose

Page 4 of 20 2/29/2012

89



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB531 Fulton Change permissible budget reserves for schools

Lowers MPS allowable reserve percentage from 20% to 15%.  Provides that any reduction in a school 
district’s budget made to comply with the budget limitation under the state aid formula must affect 
classroom expenses at a last resort.  The obvious intent behind the bill is to force school districts to utilize 
its reserves toward instructional staff and to place instructional staff as the priority for budget expenditures.  
NCSA Summary.

Education
02/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB537 Karpisek Change provisions relating to budget limitations and property tax levy limitations Revenue
02/04/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

LB572 Price Limit transfers of students between learning community member school districts

Provides that if a learning community coordinating council creates an elementary learning center within a 
member school district, a student residing in such member school district is not eligible to transfer to 
another school district within the learning community.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB582 Haar Adopt the Student Expression Act

Provides that the right of students to free expression in all public schools in Nebraska shall not be abridged 
except as provided in the Student Expression Act.  Prohibits certain types of student expression including 
(1) obscene expressions, defamatory expressions, and expression that creates clear and present danger of 
unlawful acts or causes material and substantial disruption of the school or invasion of privacy.  Provides 
that the Legislature encourages school districts to adopt and publish policies on student expression 
following the guidelines of the Student Expression Act.

Education
03/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB615 Krist Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

See LB 636

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB633 Adams Change provisions relating to certain tax levies and certain bonds of school districts and authorize 
refunding bonds

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/17/11 01/25/12 02/08/12 Signed by the 
Governor 
2/28/12

Support

LB634 Adams Change provisions relating to the tax levy authority of school districts relating to certain bonds

Allows a school district to exceed the maximum levy of 5.2¢ (to cover environmental hazard abetment and 
other projects) in any year in which: (1) the taxable valuation of the district is lower than the taxable 
valuation in the year in which the district last issued bonds pursuant to this section and (2) the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ is insufficient to meet the combined annual principal and interest obligations for all bonds 
issued under section 79-10,110.  The amount generated from a district's levy in excess of the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ upon the taxable valuation of the district may not exceed the combined annual principal and 
interest obligations for such bonds minus the amount generated by levying the maximum levy of 5.2¢ upon 
the taxable valuation of the district and minus any federal payments or subsidies associated with such 
bonds.

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

Page 5 of 20 2/29/2012

90



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB635 Adams Change the Quality Education Accountability Act

Requires the State Board of Education to establish an index to be used to measure the performance of 
individual public schools beginning with school year 2012-13.  Schools who do not meet the minimum 
level of performance established by the board would be designated as a “priority school” and an 
intervention team would be established for each priority school.  The intervention team would develop 
annual progress plans.  Provides for possible loss of accreditation after 5 years of being a priority school.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

LB635 
amended into 
LB 637

Support

LB636 Adams Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

Permits the disclosure of certain student records to learning community employees, but without identifiable 
personal information.  Requires the learning community coordinating council to annually report data and 
information provided by member school districts under certain sections to the Education Committee.  
Changes requirements for the learning community school districts to provide copies of applications 
submitted to attend a focus school, focus program, magnet school, or school building not in the student’s 
attendance area and to mark whether that application was accepted or rejected. 

See LB 615

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB680 Heidemann Adopt the School Employees Cash Balance Retirement Act

Creates a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees, similar to the current plan offered 
to state employees, often referred to as a hybrid of both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.  
Does not impact the retirement system for existing school employees.   Under the State Employees 
Retirement Plan, employees contribute about 4.8% of salary and the employer (the state) contributes about 
7.5% of salary to an employee account.  The employee cannot control investment of the account, but is 
guaranteed an annual return of at least 5% a year.  The account can receive a higher return, depending on 
investment earnings.  At retirement, the employee may buy an annuity, or withdraw the balance in a lump 
sum or in installments.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the session adjourns.  

NCSA:  Would create a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees.  It is important to 
note this legislation would not change the retirement system for existing school employees.  The bill 
proposes a retirement system similar to the current plan offered to state employees, often referred to as a 
hybrid system (both a defined benefit and defined contribution plan).  Senator Heidemann offered the bill 
knowing that it would require significant study.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the 
session adjourns.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
03/01/11
at 12:10 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB717 Council Change school board election, membership, and salary provisions

Provides for 3-5 member school boards for all school districts.  Provides for term limits and a $20,000 
salary to all school board members. 

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/18/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Oppose

Page 6 of 20 2/29/2012

91



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB720 Lautenbaugh

LAUTENBAUGH 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Change membership provisions and provide salaries for Class V school boards

Provides term limits and a $20,000 salary for Class V school district board members. Reduces number of 
school board members to from 12 to 5 for Class V school districts.  

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/18/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

02/22/12 Monitor

LB731 Mello

SPEAKER FLOOD 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Adopt the Remanufacturing Pilot Project Act and provide an income tax credit

Provides for a refundable and transferable tax credit to a taxpayer, nonprofit organization, or governmental 
unit for each ton of material recycled or composted in Nebraska in excess over the amount of the same 
material recycled, composted or disposed of in a base year. The per-ton credit shall equal the statewide 
average tipping fee.  The tax credit is funded by using 10% of the fee collections under litter fees and the 
Waste Reduction and Recycling Incentive Act.

Revenue
02/02/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

02/24/12 Monitor

LB736 Schumacher Require provision of secret-ballot envelopes for elections Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/25/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Monitor

LB746 Hadley Change school permit provisions Transportation 
and 
Telecommunicatio
ns
01/30/12
at 1:30 p.m.
$oom 1113

Monitor

LB753 Avery Create funds and provide funding for childhood obesity prevention measures through sales taxation of soft 
drinks

Creates an Obesity Education Fund within the Dept of Education funded by sales and use taxes on soft 
drinks.  $100,000 for statewide database, remaining funds to school districts.  Creates Obesity Prevention 
Fund with the Dept of Health and Human Services (ten percent of total funds) to be distributed to local 
public health departments.

Revenue
02/22/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

LB758 Avery Change provisions relating to gifts given by a lobbyist or principal Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/19/12
at 1:30 p.m. 
Room 1507

Monitor

Page 7 of 20 2/29/2012

92



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB763 Louden Change provisions relating to freeholder petitions and elementary sites Education
01/17/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor

LB778 Coash Change loan eligibility under the Excellence in Teaching Act

Allocates the first $1 million in the Education Innovation Fund from Lottery proceeds to the Excellence in 
Teaching Cash Fund to fund the Attracting Excellence to Teaching Program.  Currently the first $40,000 is 
allocated in that manner.  Allows in 2012-13 those who did not previously have a loan from the Attracting 
Excellence to Teaching Program to apply for a loan.  Currently only those currently receiving such a loan 
can apply in 2012-13.

Education 01/09/12 
motion to 
withdraw bill 
filed
01/10/12 bill 
withdrawn

Monitor

LB785 Christensen Authorize possession of firearms as prescribed

Generally prohibits any business entity, owner, manager, or legal possessor of real property, or public or 
private employer from establishing a policy that prevents a person from storing a firearm in his or her car 
which is parked on that real property.  Authorizes a civil action for persons damaged by such a policy or 
terminated from employment as a result of violating such a policy.  

Judiciary
02/22/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Oppose

LB800 Louden Change provisions relating to appraised value of school lands

Provides that that for sales of educational lands at public auction, appraised value is the value as 
determined by the Board of Educational
Lands and Funds.  Currently the value is established by a certified general real property appraiser under 
section 72-257 or 72-258.

Education
01/17/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

01/25/12 02/08/12 02/15/12 Monitor

LB802 Lautenbaugh Authorize carrying of concealed handguns by certain authorities within the scope of their employment

Allows the Attorney General and his assistant attorneys and investigators, the U.S. District Attorney and his 
assistant attorneys, and county attorneys and their deputy attorneys to carry a concealed weapon in all the 
places where concealed weapons are not now permitted under state law.  

Judiciary
01/25/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Monitor

Page 8 of 20 2/29/2012

93



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB809 Lautenbaugh Change provisions relating to evaluation of certificated employees of schools

Require all school districts to evaluate probationary and permanent employed teachers based upon actual 
classroom observations by a school district administrator, unless otherwise agreed to in a collective-
bargaining agreement, for a minimum of 90 minutes per semester with no one observation being less than 
30 minutes. Under current law, if deficiencies are noted in the work performance of a probationary 
employed teacher, the evaluator must provide the teacher at the time of the observation with a list of 
deficiencies, a list of suggestions for improvement and assistance in overcoming the deficiencies, and 
follow-up evaluations and assistance when deficiencies remain.  LB 809 would extend this requirement to 
permanent employed teachers also.

Education
01/23/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 2/8/12 Oppose

LB821 Health and Human 
Services Committee

HEALTH AND 
HUMAN 
SERVICES 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Create the Nebraska Children's Commission and require legislation to create the Department of Children's 
Services

Legislation to provide the creation of a state agency to oversee all programs providing services to children 
and families and to create and provide duties for a commission.   The Health and Human Services 
Committee of the Legislature, in cooperation with the Department of Health and Human Services and the 
Nebraska Children’s Commission prepare legislation for the 2013 Legislative Session, to create the 
Department of Children’s Services with the responsibility for all child welfare service programs which are 
the responsibility of the state, including child welfare, behavioral health, developmental disabilities, public 
health, and Medicaid as such programs apply to children. This department will assume responsibility for 
duties currently assigned to the Office of Juvenile Services and the Division of Children and Family 
Services of the Department of Health and Human Services.  The assistant director of the Division of 
Medicaid and Long-Term Care of the Department of Health and Human Services will also serve as an 
assistant director of the Department of Children’s Services within the department and will oversee 
Medicaid needs relating to children.  The chief executive officer of the department shall be appointed by the 
Governor subject to the approval of the Legislature.  The department will begin to provide services on July 
1, 2013.  The Nebraska Children’s Commission will develop and implement the Department of Children’s 
Services and create a strategic plan for reform of welfare programs and services in Nebraska.  The 
commission will consist of 26 members representing the three branches of government.

Health and 
Human Services
02/01/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

02/24/12 02/28/12 Monitor

LB822 Adams Change notice provisions relating to changes in real property valuations

Provides that the notice sent by assessors to owners of property whose valuations have changed shall 
contain a statement that all classes of real property have been reviewed and fall within an acceptable range 
of values, rather than a statement that describes the average level of value of all classes and subclasses of 
real property in the county as determined by TERC.

Revenue
01/19/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

Page 9 of 20 2/29/2012

94



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB823 Adams Change duties of county treasurers

Provides that if a school district treasurer has not filed an official bond pursuant to section 11-107 or 
evidence of equivalent insurance coverage, the county treasurer may hold funds collected or received for the 
school district until such time as the bond or evidence of equivalent insurance coverage has been filed.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/02/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

02/13/12 Monitor

LB836 Pahls Change provisions relating to deposit and investment of public funds in certificates of deposit and time 
deposits

Replaces references to the term “certificates of deposits or time” with the term “interest bearing deposits” as 
it relates to the conditions on the authorization given to the state or political subdivisions to invest or 
deposit funds.

Banking, 
Commerce and 
Insurance
01/17/12 
at 1:30 p.m. 
Room 1507

01/18/12 02/01/12 02/15/12 Monitor

LB839 Council Require reporting of sexual misconduct by a school employee

Requires reporting by a school employee who has received a report from a student of an allegation of sexual 
contact, sexual penetration, sexual abuse, or sexually exploitation on the part of a teacher or school 
employee.

Judiciary
01/25/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Monitor

LB846 Sullivan Require employers to maintain employee emergency contact information

Requires all employers to maintain certain current emergency contact information and make reasonable 
efforts to contact the employee’s primary and secondary emergency contacts when the employee is treated 
at a medical facility for an on the job injury.

Business and 
Labor
01/23/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Monitor

LB866 Haar Adopt the Nebraska Fair Employment Opportunity Act

Prohibits employers with 20 or more employees from refusing to consider for employment or refusing to 
offer employment to an individual because the individual is unemployed.  Prohibits the same employers 
from advertising that unemployed individuals are disqualified from being hired or will not be considered.  
Provides for civil fines after investigation by the Equal Opportunity Commission. 

Business and 
Labor
01/23/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Oppose

LB869 Janssen Change provisions relating to the State Athletic Commissioner and change membership of the Athletic 
Advisory Committee

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/16/12
1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

02/27/12 Monitor

Page 10 of 20 2/29/2012

95



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB870 Adams

EDUCATION 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Provide for an accountability system to measure school performance under the Quality Education 
Accountability Act

Require the State Board of Education to establish by August 1, 2012 an accountability system to be used to 
measure the performance of individual public schools and school districts beginning with the 2012-13 
school year. The system must combine multiple measures, including graduation rates, student growth and 
student improvement on statewide assessments, and other indicators of the performance.  The legislation 
permits the measures selected by the State Board to be combined into a school performance score and 
district performance score. The State Board must establish levels of performance for the indicators used in 
the accountability system in order to classify the performance of public schools and school districts.  NDE 
would be required to annually report the performance of individual public schools and school districts as 
part of the statewide assessment and reporting system.

Education
01/17/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

02/15/12

LB1144 
amended into 
LB 870

Support

LB875 Howard Prohibit driving while using wireless communication devices in school crossing zones and construction 
zones

Except as otherwise provided in subsection (2) of this section, no person shall use a handheld wireless 
communication device or an interactive wireless communication device while operating a motor vehicle 
which is in motion in a school crossing zone or a maintenance, repair, or construction zone.  This does not 
apply to A person performing his or her official duties as a law enforcement officer, a firefighter, an 
ambulance driver, or an emergency medical technician; or a person operating a motor vehicle in an 
emergency situation. $200 fine for first offense.

Transportation 
and 
Telecommunicatio
ns
01/30/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Monitor

LB884 Sullivan Create the Agricultural Literacy Task Force Agriculture
01/31/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Monitor

LB895 McGill Provide for teacher certification for military spouses

Provides that the Education Commissioner shall issue a certificate to teach in Nebraska to a military spouse 
if the military spouse satisfies a variety of enumerated conditions. Provides for a temporary certificate.  

Education 
01/23/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 1/25/12 Monitor

Page 11 of 20 2/29/2012

96



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB902 Harr

HARR PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Redefine a term relating to property tax exemptions and change provisions relating to a sales tax exemption 
for purchases by the state or a governmental unit

Provides a definition of “property of the state and its governmental subdivisions” for the purposes of 
exempting such property from property tax: (A) property held in fee title by the state or a governmental 
subdivision or (B) property beneficially owned by the state or a governmental subdivision in that it is used 
for a public purpose and is being acquired under a lease-purchase agreement, financing lease, or other 
instrument which provides for transfer of legal title to the property to the state or a governmental 
subdivision upon payment of all amounts due thereunder.  Applies both retrospectively and prospectively.  

LB902 would reverse a state tax ruling that would cost Omaha taxpayers an additional $7.5 million a year 
and would deliver unexpected tax bills to several other cities and counties for previously tax-exempt 
projects.  The bill is intended to address whether libraries, stadiums, parking garages and other public 
facilities built using a "lease-purchase" arrangement should be taxed.

Revenue
02/09/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

LB906 Wallman Change death benefits under the Nebraska Workers' Compensation Act

Caps workers’ compensation reasonable expenses of burial at 13 times the state average weekly wage in the 
year of death rather than the current cap of $6000.  Provides a $25,000 payment to a deceased employee’s 
personal representative if there is no spouse, child, or other dependent entitled to a deceased employee’s 
workers’ compensation benefits.  

Business and 
Labor
01/30/12
1:30 p.m. 
Room 2102

Monitor

LB909 Lautenbaugh Provide an employer defense under the Nebraska Workers' Compensation Act

Creates an affirmative defense for an employer in a workers’ compensation action that the employee was 
willfully negligent in obtaining employment. Defines willful negligence in obtaining employment to mean 
an employee, as an applicant, to knowingly make false statements about his or her physical condition in an 
employment application or preemployment questionnaire.

Business and 
Labor
01/30/12
1:30 p.m. 
Room 2102

Monitor

LB912 McCoy Provide requirements for local laws regulating discrimination

Prohibits a political subdivision from adopting or enforcing a local law or policy that creates a protected 
classification unless such classification is contained in the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, the 
Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act, the Nebraska Fair Housing Act, or sections 20-126 to 20-143 or 
48-1219 to 48-1227. Does not apply to a law or policy that applies only to the employees of the political 
subdivision.

Judiciary
02/22/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Support

Page 12 of 20 2/29/2012

97



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB913 Adams

ADAMS PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Change base limitation provisions and certain dates relating to the Tax Equity and Educational 
Opportunities Support Act

Provide a gradual phase-back to the normal base spending limitation of 2.5% over a period of several years.  
Under current provisions of TEEOSA, the base spending limit for schools in 2012-13 is set at one half 
percent but is increased to one percent for 2012-13. The base spending limit for 2013-14 would have been 
2.5% under the current provisions of TEEOSA.  Under LB 913, the base limit would be set at 2%, which 
means, if no further legislative action intervenes, the base limit for 2014-15 would be 2.5%.The bill also 
changes provisions related to the local effort rate (LER) for school districts. Sets the date for state aid 
certification, budget authority certification, and certification of applicable allowable reserve percentages as 
May 1, 2012.

Education
02/13/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB916 Nebraska Retirement 
Systems Committee

NEBRASKA 
RETIREMENT 
SYSTEMS 
COMMITTEE 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Change provisions relating to retirement Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
01/26/12
at 12:10 p.m.
Room 1524

02/14/12 Monitor

LB917 Cornett Change truancy provisions for absences relating to military employment activities

Truancy policy shall not include absences due to documented illness or absences related to deployment 
activities as provided in Article V, Section E, of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for 
Military Children.

See LB933, LB1165

Judiciary
02/03/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113
RESCHEDULED
02/13/12
at 9:30 a.m.
Room 1113

Monitor

LB933 Ashford

LANGEMEIER 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Change provisions relating to truancy

Schools shall review cases in which the child is absent for more than 20 days and determine if any  further 
action is necessary to get the child to attend school regularly. If the school district and the county attorney 
determine that further action is necessary to address the child's attendance, there shall be a meeting between 
the parents of the child, the school, and the county attorney or his or her designee at a location determined 
by the school.  Deletes requirement for the county attorney to file a complaint.

See LB917, LB1165.

Judiciary
02/03/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113
RESCHEDULED
02/13/12
at 9:30 a.m.
Room 1113

02/16/12 Monitor

Page 13 of 20 2/29/2012

98



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB947 Hadley

HAAR PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Change averaging adjustment and a certification date under the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities 
Support Act

Increases the 2012-13 base limitation for school districts to 2% from .5% Increases 2012-13 averaging 
adjustment by .5%.  Changes 2012 certification date to April 15.

Education
02/13/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB948 Lambert Change provisions and a penalty relating to intimidation by telephone call

Broadens the offense of intimidation by telephone to include intimidation by electronic communication 
device.  Changes classification from Class III misdemeanor to Class I.  Electronic communication device 
means any device which, in its ordinary and intended use, transmits by electronic means writings, sounds, 
visual images, or data of any nature to another electronic communication device.

Judiciary
01/27/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Monitor

LB956 Ashford Authorize an increase in city sales tax rates

Increases the allowable local option sales tax from 1.5% to 2%.  Requires a local option sales tax rate above 
1.5% to be put before the voters.  Terminates the tax after 10 years or upon repayment of bonds, whichever 
is later.  Requires an Interlocal agreement with a school district or a county before a city can go above the 
1.5% rate.

Any increases approved by voters would sunset after 10 years, unless the revenue is used to repay bonds for 
a specific project.  The proposal would also require cities to partner with school districts or counties to 
address long-term needs.

See LB 357

Revenue
02/16/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

LB959 Janssen

COASH PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Provide immunity to employers for job references 

Unless otherwise provided by law, an employer who discloses factual information about a current or former 
employee to a prospective employer of the employee shall have absolute immunity from civil liability. 
Absolute immunity applies to the disclosure of factual information, including dates of employment, pay 
level at the time of termination, job description and duties, and wage history.  Further shields a disclosure, 
in good faith, of information about job performance, conduct, or evaluation of a current or former employee 
from civil liability.  Creates presumption of good faith which can be rebutted by clear and convincing 
evidence that the employer disclosed the information with actual malice or with deliberate intent to mislead. 

Business and 
Labor
02/06/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Support

LB962 Pahls

PAHLS PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Change provisions relating to tax expenditure reporting and name the Tax Rate Review Committee

Provides that the Department of Revenue must make a report that lists each tax expenditure relating to sales 
and use tax and provides categories for the reporting.  

Health and 
Human Services
02/13/12
at 9:30 a.m.
Room 1524

02/15/12 Monitor

LB968 Speaker Flood Provide for deficit appropriations Appropriations
01/24/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

Page 14 of 20 2/29/2012

99



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB970 Cornett

MCCOY PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Terminate the inheritance tax and change income tax rates and calculation

Terminates the inheritance tax on January 1, 2013.  Lowers personal income tax rates for 2013 and onward.  
Creates new tax brackets with rates ranging from 2.42% for income of an individual between $0-2,999 to 
6.70% for income of an individual of over $30,000.  Lowers corporate income tax rates to 5.58% on the 
first $100,000 of taxable income and at 6.70% on income above $100,000.

See LB 1102

Governor's Tax Plan Legislation

Revenue
01/26/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

LB973 Coash Provide for the use of retirement benefits to pay civil damages

Provides for the attachment of a judgment against an individual’s state sponsored retirement account (e.g. 
judges, school employees, state patrol) if that individual has been convicted of or pleads no contest to a 
felony that is defined as assault, sexual assault, kidnapping, child abuse, false imprisonment, or theft by 
embezzlement and is found liable for civil damages as a result of such family.  Provides that benefits or 
annuities to the extent reasonably necessary for the support of the employee or appointee or any of his or 
her beneficiaries are exempt.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
01/31/12
at 12:10 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor

LB974 Pirsch Change the income tax rate

Lowers primary income tax rate for establishing tax rate schedules from 3.70% to 3.60%.

Revenue
02/24/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

LB975 Smith Adopt the Fair Bidding Act

Unless otherwise required by federal law, the bill would prohibit all state, state agency, and political 
subdivision contracts, RFPs, or bid specifications for construction from containing a term that prevents a 
bidder or their subcontractor from entering into or adhering to collective-bargaining agreements relating to 
construction under the public contract or a term that discriminates against bidders, public contractors, or 
subcontractors based on the status as a party or nonparty to, or the willingness or refusal to enter into, a 
collective-bargaining agreement relating to construction under the contract.  Further, state, state agency or 
political subdivision grants, loans, tax abatements, or tax credits may not be conditioned upon either of the 
terms above.  

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/22/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Monitor

LB977 Mello Adopt the Property Tax Relief Act

Provides that the first $8000 of a homestead is exempt from property taxation.  Requires homestead owner 
to submit an application.  Reimburses counties for lost revenue.  

Revenue
02/08/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

Page 15 of 20 2/29/2012

100



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB985 Krist Provide for a juvenile justice pilot program

Program to be administered by the Office of Probation Administration. Purposes: (1) provide access to 
services in the community for juveniles placed on probation, (2) prevent unnecessary commitment of 
juveniles to the Department of Health and Human Services and to the Office of Juvenile Services, (3) 
eliminate barriers preventing juveniles from receiving needed services, (4) prevent unnecessary penetration 
of juveniles further into the juvenile justice system, (5) enable the juvenile's needs to be met in the least 
intrusive and least restrictive manner, (6) reduce the duplication of resources within the juvenile justice 
system through intense coordinated case management and supervision, and (7) use evidence-based 
practices and responsive case management to improve outcomes for adjudicated juveniles.

Judiciary
01/26/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

01/30/12 02/14/12 02/24/12 Monitor

LB989 Haar Allow exceptions to property tax levy limitations and school district budget authority for 21st Century 
Community Learning Centers

Defines a K-12 21st Century Community Learning Center and exempts it from property tax levy 
limitations.  

Revenue
02/23/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

LB990 Fulton

SPEAKER FLOOD 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Change flag display provisions for schools and require recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance

Requires the American flag to be displayed in each public school classroom.  Further provides that all 
pupils enrolled in a school district shall be led in a group recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of 
the United States during the first class of each day that school is open and in session.

Education
02/07/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor

LB991 Krist Provide for a study relating to countywide school districts

Requires the appointment of a study committee to study (a) the costs and effects of requiring a single 
countywide school district in each county in Nebraska and (b) the feasibility of allowing exceptions to such 
a requirement for any existing school district that includes property in more than one county.  

Education
02/07/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB996 Wightman

SEILER PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Change provisions relating to compulsory attendance

Removes the 16 year old with parental consent exception to the statute that requires those under the age of 
18 to attend school.

Education
01/30/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

02/08/12 02/22/12 Support

LB999 Price Authorize the display of an honor and remember flag at public buildings

Provides that certain public buildings, including school houses, may fly upon request a flag recognized and 
accepted by internationally recognized veterans organizations as commemorating and honoring the 
members of the United States Armed Forces who lost their lives in the line of duty.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/15/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

02/27/12 Monitor

Page 16 of 20 2/29/2012

101



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB1011 Dubas Adopt the Property Tax Relief Act

Provides a refundable income tax credit up to $4000 to agricultural property owners and year-around owner-
occupied residential property owners.  The amount of the credit is determined by subtracting a percentage 
of the claimant's household income from the amount of property taxes accrued in the preceding calendar 
year.  The percentage subtracted varies by the claimant’s household income and ranges from 4% for 
incomes below $10,000 to 18% for incomes above $30,000. A person with $3000 in property taxes and 
$27,000 in household income would receive a credit of $570 ($3000 – (.09 x $27,000)).  A person with 
$10,000 in property taxes and $40,000 in household income would receive a credit of $1000 ($10,000 – 
(.18 x $40,000)).

Revenue
02/23/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

LB1012 Lautenbaugh Change medical treatment and temporary disability provisions under the Nebraska Workers' Compensation 
Act

For workers’ compensation purposes, the bill allows an employer to provide work at a different employer or 
non-profit, if the work meets the doctor imposed temporary restrictions. Eliminates workers compensation 
benefits when an employee is fired for cause or resigns. Provides that an employee's refusal or neglect to 
avail himself or herself of medical or surgical treatment furnished by the employer shall result in a 
rebuttable presumption that the employee's disability would have been reduced or his or her condition 
would have been improved if he or she had availed himself or herself of such medical or surgical treatment.  
Eliminates workers compensation benefits during a period an individual is incarcerated unless the injury 
occurred while the individual was employed by a for-profit employer engaged in interstate commerce.  

Business and 
Labor
01/30/12
1:30 p.m. 
Room 2102

Monitor

LB1020 Nordquist

SPEAKER FLOOD 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Adopt the Nebraska Coordinated School Health Act

Creates a grant program for schools to establish school based health centers.

Education
01/31/12
at 1:30  p.m.
Room 1525

02/16/12 Monitor

LB1023 Avery Provide for the waiver of education-related fees for dependents of veterans

Sets a retirement contribution rate from state troopers at XX of monthly compensation beginning on July 1, 
2012.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/15/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

02/27/12 Monitor

LB1038 Council Require blood-lead testing prior to school enrollment

Provides that between October 1, 2012 and December 1, 2012, each member who is employed and 
participating in the County Employee Retirement System or Nebraska State Employee Retirement System 
prior to January 1, 2003 may elect to join the cash balance benefit plan rather than the defined benefit plan. 

Education
01/31/12
at 1:30  p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

Page 17 of 20 2/29/2012

102



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB1039 Brasch

SPEAKER FLOOD 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Change provisions relating to school bus safety requirements

Provides a fine and loss of points from a driver’s license for not stopping for a school bus which is stopped 
and has the stop arm extended.   

Transportation 
and 
Telecommunicatio
ns
01/30/12
at 1:30 p.m.
$oom 1113

02/09/12 Monitor

LB1045 Haar Authorize school district expenditures in case of disaster or emergency as prescribed

Provides that in the event of a disaster, a school may make emergency expenditures, enter into contracts, 
and incur obligations for emergency management purposes regardless of existing statutory limitations and 
requirements pertaining to appropriations, budgeting, levies, or the manner of entering into contracts.

Education
02/21/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB1061 Heidemann

HEIDEMANN 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Change provisions relating to valuation of agricultural land

Provides for a new valuation method of agricultural and horticultural land for school district taxation 
purposes.  The percentage of actual value to be used declines from 73% in 2013 to 65% in 2017 and after.

Revenue
02/08/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB1068 Adams Create and provide duties for the Medicaid in the Public Schools Task Force

Creates a task force to examine the efficiency and effectiveness of the current systems for seeking medicaid 
reimbursements from the federal government for physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech therapy, 
and administrative claims; and the feasibility of expanding the special education services for which 
medicaid reimbursements from the federal government are sought.

Education
02/21/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor

LB1074 Schilz Provide duties for the State Department of Education relating to the federal Family Educational Rights and 
Privacy Act

Education
02/07/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB1076 Karpisek Change requirements for copies of public records and speaking at public meetings

Limits the public’s right to speak at a public body’s meeting to just speaking on agenda items.  Provides 
that custodians of records need only provide copies of records if requested and if copying equipment is 
reasonably available.  Provides that, after a request, custodians of public records need not copy, produce, or 
generate any public record created within a certain time frame unless the request specifies a specific subject 
matter.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/22/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Monitor

LB1079 Mello

CONRAD 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Provide grants for educational bridge programs for low-income adults Education
02/06/12
at 1:30 p.m
Room 1525

02/16/12 Monitor

Page 18 of 20 2/29/2012

103



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB1084 Christensen Require all land leased by the Board of Educational Lands and Funds be open to the public for hunting, fur 
harvesting, and fishing

Education
02/21/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 2/23/12 Monitor

LB1090 Wallman

WALLMAN 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Provide for the awarding of grants and the distribution of information relating to the Summer Food Service 
Program by the State Department of Education

Education
01/31/12
at 1:30  p.m.
Room 1525

02/16/12 Monitor

LB1098 Council Repeal the Build Nebraska Act and change distribution of sales and use tax revenue

The bill removes the proceeds of the one quarter cent of sales tax to be collected on or after July 1, 2013 to 
July 1, 2033, for the Build Nebraska Act. (Removes the funding from LB 84, passed in 2011, to be used for 
new high priority roads projects, expressways and infrastructure funding to cities and counties.)

Revenue
02/16/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Monitor

LB1104 Adams

AVERY PRIORITY 
BILL (2012)

Change the Postsecondary Education Act Education
02/06/12
at 1:30 p.m
Room 1525

02/23/12 Monitor

LB1105 Adams Change and eliminate provisions relating to schools Education
02/07/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

02/23/12 Monitor

LB1124 Council Provide for designation of priority schools

Provides for creation of an accountability system to measure performance of schools.  Schools that do not 
reach certain target standards are designated as a priority school.  Provides for intervention teams to 
develop progress plans for priority schools.  Directs Department of Education to establish a kindergarten 
readiness advisory group.  

Education
01/30/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor

LB1131 McGill Adopt the Innovation, Discovery, and Entrepreneurial Act Education
01/30/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor

LB1144 Ashford Provide for career academy schools

Allows the creation of a career academy school to provide holistic education to help students find a career-
based educational alternative to a college-bound educational curriculum.

Education
01/30/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

LB1144 
amended into 
LB 870

Oppose

Page 19 of 20 2/29/2012

104



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB1145 McGill

JUDICIARY 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2012)

Change and provide provisions and penalties relating to human trafficking and pandering

Requires signage which advertises the National Human Trafficking Resource Hotline to be posted at 
airports, high schools, hospitals, and other places.  Changes classification of pandering to Class III if the 
prostitute is under 18 years of age.  Provides various items are to be seized without a warrant and subject to 
forfeiture if used in connection with a human trafficking offense.  Allows a conviction to be vacated in 
certain instances when the defendant’s participation was the result of having been a victim of trafficking.  
Creates a commission.

Judiciary
02/16/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

Monitor

LB1154 Lathrop Provide job training programs for recipients of unemployment insurance benefits

Allows money in the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund to be used for support of public and 
private on-site job training programs designed to train Nebraskans currently receiving unemployment 
insurance benefits and to be used for costs associated with providing those programs.

Business and 
Labor

Motion to 
withdraw bill 
filed 1/20/12
Bill withdrawn 
1/23/12

Monitor

LB1156 Carlson Exempt non-equalized schools from expenditure limits in the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities 
Support Act

Education
02/13/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB1165 Fulton Change provisions relating to truancy and excessive absenteeism

If a child is habitually truant, the school district shall review the case and determine if any further action is 
necessary to get the child to attend school regularly. If the school district determines that further action is 
necessary to address the child's attendance, there shall be a meeting between the school district and the 
parent, guardian, or custodian of the child at a location determined by the school. If the school district 
determines after such meeting that further action is necessary to get the child to attend school regularly, the 
school district may file a report with the county attorney of the county in which the child resides. Excessive 
absenteeism means excused or unexcused absences from school in excess of the number of days or hourly 
equivalent stated in the school district policy and (b) truant means not excused to the satisfaction of district 
policy by the parent, guardian, or other person having control of the child.

See LB917, LB933.

Judiciary
02/03/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113
RESCHEDULED
02/13/12
at 9:30 a.m.
Room 1113

Oppose

LB1168 Lautenbaugh Adopt the School District Purchasing Act

Provides a uniform purchasing procedure for school district purchases of equipment, supplies, other items 
of personal property, and services.  Provides for sales of surplus personal property which is obsolete or not 
usable by the school district.

Education
02/21/12
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

Page 20 of 20 2/29/2012

105


	Board Packet March 5, 2012
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Minutes February 20, 2012
	Financials
	E.4. Committee Meeting Minutes - February 27, 2012
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	H.1. First Reading of Policy 6203 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Taught Curriculum: Lesson (Instructional) Plan
	Policy 6203
	H.2. Reaffirm Policy 6220 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment -  Taught Curriculum: Organization of Instruction
	Policy 6220
	H.3. Reaffirm 6628 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - School Counseling
	Policy 6628
	H.4. Reaffirm Policy 6635 - Curriculum, Instruction,and Assessment - Students with Disabilities
	Policy 6635
	H.5. Reaffirm Policy 9111 - Bylaws of the Board - Election of Officers
	Policy 9111
	H.6. Reaffirm Rule 9111.1 - Bylaws of the Board - Election of Officers
	Rule 9111.1
	H.7. Reaffirm Policy 9112 - Bylaws of the Board - Committees and Appointments
	Policy 9112
	H.8. Reaffirm Rule 9112.1 - Bylaws of the Board - Committees and Appointments
	Rule 9112.1
	H.9. Reaffirm Policy 9210 - Bylaws of the Board - Attorney
	Policy 9210
	H.10. Reaffirm Policy 9220 - Bylaws of the Board - Auditor
	Policy 9220
	H.11. Reaffirm Policy 9330 - Bylaws of the Board - Approval of Administrative Regulations
	Policy 9330
	H.12. Approval to Recognize the Millard Education Association for the 2013-2014 Teachers Contract
	H.13. Approval to Recognize the Millard Education Association for the 2013-2014 Nurses Contract
	H.14. Award Contract for Ackerman Roofing Phase III
	H.15. Award Contract for Millard North High School Roofing Phase IV
	H.16. Award Contract for Millard South High School Roofing Phase III
	H.17. Award Contract for Andersen Middle School Carpet Replacement
	H.18. Award Contract for Cottonwood Heat Pump Replacements
	H.19. Award Contract for Hitchcock RTU Replacements
	H.20. Approval for Administrator for Hire
	H.21. Approval of Personnel Items:  Leaves of Absence, Resignations, and New Hires
	Leaves of Absence
	Resignations
	New Hires
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.2. Legislative Update



